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1| OVERVIEW

Group snapshot
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Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 12% In the last year
from £712m in 2022 t¢

E800mM in 2023

\.—

1
Energy generation
Cur renewable energy
assets proeduce enough

energy 1o power over
a million UK homes

™y
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Number of employees

We employ over 1,500
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving s over 681,101

carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 224 borrowers
N the UK
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Number of sites

We own 229
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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1. Energy

Approximatively 50% of the Group's net assals

comprise energy gencraling assets such as solar
nergy s and wing farms

long-enm -

These asvets provide

evenue streams, though ner value can
=il be impacted by chanaes ir pricing and dematid.
Our encray sector s ntentionally dvérsified acros
aganst

tavourable condiions N a specfic asiet class and

rarge of tecknologes o mugatoe

contnbute towards steady. predicts chare price
growwth
Vie expanded ouwr solar portfolio walh further

additions in Zestec which specalises in develop:ng
commercial solar rooftop sites in the UK These siles
ot to

[he

are currently under construction, and we expe

retam and  operate thiem once complete

wonnd
on budget,

corstiuction of Guarahndae, our fatmm 10

Poland, terrains on track and arngd wo
expoctit to statt genetating electnaty by Decerrber
2023

constructicn

Dulacca Wind  Tarm,  cur

project in

largescale
Westerri Australia started

generating  electnaly  after year end and  was

subccquently cold in Ociober 2023 At thie keginning
of the financal year i July 2022 we also comipleted
Solar

Wit &

the consiraction and sale of Darhngton Point

Tarrm, ane of the largest sclar sites in Australia,

capacity of Z53MYY,

COur successful and well-ectablished biomass divisien

contnues 1o perform well delivering stable returns
since acguisition in 015 We added a new site at
rtan N Fast Angba in Arl 2021 has

Though it suffered

Snette which
pertormed well Since acauksition
some months of operatioral downume, following a
gearbox fault, the msurance claim for replacement

parts and loss of revenue was cettled m full

Construchon &t
Avrehire has crogressed as planned, w
in 2025 The
development for four years and well be capable of

our Waste to Erorgy facility 1

ith completocn
been N

expected facimy  has

rrocessing over 185 606
hausehold

O ronnes per annum of nor-

reCyClable commercial and industra!

dnll o
carbon

waste wihich wolld cltharwisc e sent ta lang

nerate 17 MW of 1ow

A0.0
Il be the first large scale, subsidy-free

exported This will oe

clocincity, enough 1o power 100 homes, anda

wiaste-to

enorgy project in westerr Scotland

Qur A6 reserye power sites Dhave contimued v

perflcrm  ahcad  ©f expectations,  duc o low

the  winter
acdimianal

assets  over
resultng it demand  for
thie arid

gensratcn fror: wnd
022/24,

/
generaticn to balance

2. Lending

Cur property lending busness continucs to be a
substantial cart of the Group, tepresenting arcund
15% of the
nediuni-t

professicnals,

over 224

Group's net assets, camprsing short- and
oxpenenced property
Bk constituled
i loans this vear to bartowers in the UK

crm secured loans o ¢

Our average loan

vative loan o value
70%1 1o protect against a fall in
property pncss, Atthe end of the period, the average
LTV for the loan book was 60%
N8 the
fr nas served the Group well over its 13
We taking & cautious
approach when assessing new lending opoorturities

Our leans are wrtten at conser
LTV levels thelow
The turpulent market

vear has roinforces mportance  of this
strategy. whic
year hisiory are naturally

considenng the changing cconomic cutlock

Since inception 1 2010, the Group has lent £2 4940
of praperty leans and has had a strong record of
recovenng ite cagital. However the abrupt increase in
interest rates 11 the current year has made it more
difficult for some borrowers (o refinance at the end of
This
increasze n prevsions and, at year end, we recorded a3

ther loan tenm has contributed to a small

presesion of £30m against one cormmercial loan
[hough this
motev-xo-rthy, It arounts o around 1% of
the (3

a

(e yT=]

acknowledge provision  feels
for contexs
sup s net assets and s an outher compared 1o
This

emphasise the rmpertar

track record daes  howevor  setve o

we of our experience and

approach nothe scctorn inciuding deciehned due
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resulted i our rereveables assots leany continung § Our property lerding busiress cortinues to perform

woncdr low interest costs, at a3 rate fived wnen fostronaly wath g diverse loan ook compramg 224
Ieresl ratl s were [t Ploans on avatage We fooas on shor-fermy [Sans o

i . current loan average tenm s 20 montheg which
[isimg mterest rates are fell rore closely n oue '

) enghles vy to swaltly adapt to changes i outlcel we
lznding Dusiness and a6 such we cortmue to take a
- . . , conader thie s garticuladty rnporant o the corrent
cantious approach i this sector We can and do.

it R eccnonie Cimine
requee the number OF lGans wio write or alter the tsk

profile of our loars threugh recucing loar 1o value 8 G orecently consolidated regional hfye Dusiness,

ratios, o1 pausing actyity n carlain parte of the P oRern Fibre Tradmg Limitco CTFTLG continues to buils
rrarket as approprate Eoaut its notwork 1o aecelerate fLll hkre delivery in the
DOUK whvle alse facusing on sales and marketing

Current trading and outlook

- ) ) , activity selling hbre preducts drectly to custamers
Since the year end, the Group has contirued © -

) Asitcontinaes ko goove and bu ld cutitginfrastr ucture,
perform steadiy from an operational parspective i

. L we do not expect o repart an accounting prafit in
and in tne with our expectdatons, Jur growth targets )

A - o ‘ the coming three o five fnanaal years
for the Grodap over e gyredium and long-term
rernain unchanged, ard weoe continue to focus or We gre pleased to repart that n Dctober 023, the

mantaring a drersified busiaess that © capabe of 1 Group raised £2170m from exsting  sharcholders

delverng predictable growth (or sharehelders through an offer to subscnbe for further sharet The

e funds raised wall allow the Group o growe sughtly
In Novemnber 2022 the government announced the i 5 Aty

N e shead of plans mcertam sectats, however we do not
introduction of an Flectnoty Generaior Levy (FCLTL ' ’

) . . expect this 10 materaly change Our DUSncss mix,
a temporary measure (o Charge exceptional receipts ’ i ‘
- . Fowvhich el contmue o evolve I orger 1o continue to
N high revenucs for Greups gonerating electno ity
2, b target maodest growth for sharehcolde s i the vears
The levy 15 n effect from 1 Zanuary 7025 unul 31 i ’
v ahead

warch 2028 and apolies 1o electincdy gererated
from renewable, biormass, and energy frony waste

scurces e Group was not recuired Lo pay ZGL N
the pered, nowever we dC cxpect 1o pay this 1IN the
next finanoal year We had aready anticipated the
rapact on the returts generated (ron our engray

portfclio over the next hve years :

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by the
overarching importance we place
on meeting the objectives of our
shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Torm Trading Jrniea e tne parsnn Corepan, ot reatl,

TZ

A suberdianes 1o er b TGrour The Lroupn

CasE T -

Aregs 2Uergy oI

= ld ma vench rooudas retirennert

ver the pasi [5 eears we Pace ool

Aol

checradizn groap of operaung businesses at are

veell postoren o Lane and

deleer song-ten

proecdictasie grosdl o v cnarebalders

1. Energy division

wLeta raple

f_;_](—'l:*h_it% AT D art L oy

congroes and o

]
e

o enewatle enerny sites aualir, o

Incernes, tast represant anoaddimional weflabon

linkedd source of mcame have alsar wriheod our
eapet NS T renie s alie cnengy 10

tend the Tl

for sae SF angoing cperatan Al

had foureen sites uador construction

2. Lending division

e lerd Snoa short- med unn e secunc d

Bacr o a iz ol s als

Crnper 30 oprspert,
and cur Francng ensble bremesses o buald ana

T e residenua, At TGN A, CLeH s

3. Fibre division

LA A

operate ke hroadbaad petorks
ATICss valols areas of the LI Wie bLid tne r etwdrrs
es O
nendd

srd o cornect tror ta homes and Fusines:

Croede cun Tustemer s cath ulbrafast fibre b

4. Housebuilding division

Cir reqigernli hiousebalding operaton oe.elops
stes from design stage 1o Prnal constracton to
crive tne deteer, CF aualily veorkmarsin
Ll et Firyk-cushit,

Clages,

Lo

EINaCra, v spaces  aith o tendly

SOty gt e neart of e lla)

Lending
Division

Energy
Division

- Fern Trading Limited

Fibre

Division Housebuilding

Solar, wind, biomass,
landfill gas,
reserve power

Property lending,
development
financing

Residential house
building, Retirement
living

T

Ultrafast fibre
broadband across
the UK

—
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Our business at a glance

[he stength of the Gronn's strategy €0 boths it
cperational dversity and tne diverse icturn profles
of thege busmesses O lending business provides
flexib ity and strong returts over the snart term,
while ourenergy, fhire, bousehnald ng and retircment
weing divisicns offor visibiline and slabilty of returns
oner the longer tenn

Sector split’

Property 18% —,

Fibre 26% —~

BB Owning and operating assets
HHE Lending

85%
15%

Sewmieat spht o et By calle, a8 ronresent s ot e conpan; balango st of era Trading Lereied

Fern's sector
allocation

Tre scale of cur brsness s a key shienoth, enabhing
i to segone large scalo estabashed operaions, as
well 25 1the oppottunity te enter nowy sCClong veth
rrrimal sk to the whele Groap by seleching
blusresses with comprehensve Busness plans and
stiong management “his enatnes

teai g L5 to

continue  te diversily our bBasness  wathout

compromising the aushty of ouwr operalions

I Housebuilding 4%
- Retrement villages 4%

— Resenve power 6%

— Sclar 9%

. Langfili gas anc biomass 14%

l
T Wind 22%
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate

pread thet the bas nguses
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

miakes &
the UK

bty

We gie proud o cperate a (oo that

posilive  contnbuticn O s00Cly 30rass

generating  renewable

onergy.  pecviding

ret remient ving and newve homies, an

Figh epced by

oodeln g

cadband to undersarves areas of the

country This s aigned o our ervircnmental, soal,

ardd governance UCSGT pohey, which s dratied and

a8
approved by the Boeard of Direciors,
Energy
We own 229 operational energy sites, Drodl,.c'n'ig
3.06% W a vear Thats cnough enetgy 1o powe
over amilicn hemes
O comibination of rectmolagies across sola, wnd.

reserve powier biomass and landhll gas complemert

each other weli helping the JR to o meet its energy

targets irrespectye of the westher
The Ferm Comaunity Fund s & social enterprise rur

tod
sand farmrs This year,

by thie Group, which works stribute commumity

funds generated from our the

Fern Community Tund has committca £14m to
local commurity  gronps  suoported A2 local

urnwersity studerts through cur Stadent Scholarship

Fund, and provided a winter fucl subsidy o 740

residents whio are local to the Group's sires

Lending
The 191 new loans we advanced dunng the year

nave helpad to fund the constuction of much

needed residental properties, as well as commeraial

vawable newve ermmployiment

property Creating

Fibre

wWilhir this filare

Cornectvty te

drvisl arc: building ok

hurdreas ol tncusan

1O e

de nf proporti

7 emiall towers and villages that doriot Currently have

access to mternet corneclivity ersur ry they are it

far v oaern Weay'S Of wire. At d srmurncating

N Vorboss, we are building & dedicated high-speco
filbre network for busmesses Nl erdon, provicing
the chgilal infrastructure that the oty needs, and

remicrng  bandwidtn . constramis o ensure the

SCandny 1< mains Compettre

Housebuilding

Cur housebulding aivision sources over /4% of the

Umiber utilses for frames n a sustainacle way and

mistalls solar panels or ar couce heat pamps n all

oroperties, leading e way in lh s and helpiny

reduce ¢ arbon emIssons,
Our

Contenporary

retirernent  wvillages  prowvide  fugh-guality,

with close too 500

lving  spaces,

hormes currently i place We have nearly 400 further
urnls o ovanous stages of Jdevelopment, and cun
securcd pipelne sites offer potonual for ancther 200

plas urnits

Enendly community 1s @ key oifferentiator for our

retirement willages, which s wity our developments

provide central faciities and g bub of social acuviry

for our residerts
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Our strategy in focus

Cur businesses

Energy
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cted o aencrate stakue
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crring] A operating theso Dusimesses 1y ¢

fel)er

to the Lroup bocause of ther potential o

sred ctanle pronts cuer e long e

2 o

custamatile ol es ang el one cec 2ither

direc byt lage mdasmar corserars o oo cthie

Nefnastk Mar, of o eEnewable energy soes also

SV s e

quahty *

poruon cfne geaengten enera, Dorahts o rates

that are locked n' Qo @ specihes pencd, o

quaafemng cte s opetstional sra ac reditatior

Fas
ceer granted This has reduced some of e
ol ik

Eon 1AL

oAbt e Long-tenm cnergy prce fore s

ol

SANTL FISEONr GOVEITITEnt N7 ertives, o Ate Seo

sifes curtoar e Tk ofe moe oy toar e

e Interest iy he tnacker for sites [1<e the ones e

Conr o perate

-

SANG opetalrg encigy SrCs Is A e nant of

oL ostrated, srd coarentl, v

o Matel

s cf thie Drcuns act asaatn [ part of the Sroon

Did you know?

e AU D Miar i

Snaten
wkoarnd

gL tes W generate

[el} reztiam

the range of

[ EN F

aTross

target predictallle ety “2r sharcholoers

“Our energy sites generated 3,069
GWh of power.”

Loacto the hugh-cualt v energ, stes that oo

[N §

aeable o socare ongeent Oancr g fom

Marstream Datks al competitive Tales 1o crnarce

ouroretur s b o helps us to delier the leve of

retuns cur shareb aloers cxpe

Indgrienyy Susress sarted ity s

sClar energy seclor

the Group bas bt
teshine o es

adjacent

Daomass ane landfl gas,

ooposer plants cdic pros de
The Groun

b

for

fhe ataral G

fxac<an

ot fo

Berefits from awersthoar an cathin

bereiine
el

pact of ts Buiness  sindg woaker conedifions

e, producien ler ene teck anloe, Liten resalt

Toebonge preducthion Clerehes= The Groun alue

T nCant bernear ol e e secton

Patgress o i

SRIEAn a7ross A7

SIS ap prottanilty of cre

redacing the

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.




[N
s

2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Our strategy in focus

Iriadditor o cur UK aites, the Croup © deveapma
sites overseas, nojur sdictions that we undéersiand
wedl [hese proesont an attrsctive apoorturty as they
Buld on our secior expertise I countres at an
earlier staye of rerewalle development Carrently
we operate wing farms n relard ard france and
solar sites in frarce, in addibon 1o a veind farm under
construacton in Polsnd

During the year we acguiced the rgbts o multiple
commercial rooftop sites thiough our commercial
rooften salar geveloper, Zostec, on which we will
bulla solar panels to generate elsctiaty for the
renants of the bunding Our siles under construction
N Australia came o frution this year, with Darlnigton
Point. a large-scale sow site sold at the start of the
year, and Dulacca Wind fanm achieving commergial
being

opcration  skartly after year end and

subseqguently sold in October 2023

Lending

lending continues (o be a core part of aur business
and has orovided the Group with a profitable and
cash generalive scctor over the past 12 years This
well-established gart of the Group manly consists o

lend ng,  which  provides  shot-ternm

property

financing tc experienced professonal propoety

developers, buy-to-let landlords sccking bndgino
fAnance, and development inancing, which provides
shart- and medium-term financing o cempanies

A koy beneft of the scale of the Group and of the
business that we have Lulh up e this sootar 5 our
abtality v mmitigate rsk through having a large numter

ol cans spread across ielafively small projects 1o

mdivdual borrowets We proactively rranago
counterparty  rnisks  tarcugh undertzking  careful
boroveer due diligence, taking secunty over assets

tyrrcally onoa first chage Rasis and mamntaiming
consetvative lean-to-value ratos Not all leans will
peform as expected and these measures help to
rminimise the impact of performance issues on an
indradual loarn This s further msigated through the
value that we lend w indiv.dual barrowers, relative 1o
cur tofal lean book which 15 spread on average
ACross 224 loans,

Fibre
Cur Abre division ncludes tour strategic arcas - hore
o the premise UFTTR enterprse filre, software

and rmobile

Through cur FTTP husiness, we are bulding riew
phyaical fibre networks for communtics o the UK
and have completed new hbre infrastructure n
nderserved parts of Devon, Somerset, Dorsel,
vicroestershire,  Yorkshire

Wiltshire,  tiampshire,

and the Home Counties spanning nurdreds of

thousands of properties.

Lending continues to be an

important part of

our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past thirteen years.
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Our strategy in focus

Brding o new
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20tk cermury To ase, Jarsss < Seesh ana Gigangt

htearates trode wi-re

Bave cusrates a vertie aily

they own the rhie, alengsde the ongd customoet
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focuscd o bingimg the operations of the four
COMECanies Intc crs  INCreas ng eMoences and

cconanies af scae Separately the conpanes

schie.es 3 greal deal each boodigy ccal ne ks,

Jstorrears and cel

cnlboarding ¢ 2rrg cuasianding

CUSTOMer =t [he berells of bheo:

g othe
together and laurchna a sirale waclessle cfer ng
AUraSE U Aetaent ks il create arester onoortunity

for the Cuasiness arc polonual customors in ‘uture
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Our strategy in focus

Housebuilding
Our residant-al bulding business full

and

Elivig, 1= &

service  housebuilder. which goquires lang

develops sites frorm design $1age 1o finat Comstractio:n
to ensure tae Selivery of qushty wor<manshup zlivg

strives o deliver igh quabity and design-led

avpiraticral nom camprising a nix cf open

s,
market and affordable Fomes, with ovor 25 siles
Jnder construction Elva s headguatered nedr

Feaconsheld with a gecqraphwcal  footprnt n

Euckinghamshire, Berkshire, Hampshire, Surrey and

West Sussex InJanuary 2023 we acguitec Millwood
Ces gner Herres which nas allowed cxparsion into

tne adjacent reqions of Kent and East Sussex,

complemanting Llivia's existing locatons

A part of o howsebuld ng division, the Group

opesrates i the retnemionl bving sector Our

retirernenl bving basiness  Rargeford, owns and

opcrates three "etiterrent wilages m Wiltshire, Mortn

Yotksrire  and  Gaoucestersbire s canéntly
Construc ing bwo s e tor fature operal orns, and nas
exchanged on twn further sites, spread acr s ihe
country cath tng intennion of oevelopimg these m

the future,
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
ousiness activities to  shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy secter-related and strategic skills

Paul Latham . -F... -~ 1 |

Pau, was previowsl, e Chiel Txedipiee o Foro T bas had varous

Tanagemen: gnd orteral corsuthng roles soriss g nurnber of sectors ana brings

AU i A cwcalth of irdusiry Gnd Busiacss espe o eenc e rci kg buldog ke,

elemerts of the infrasructiae Capital O

ie Bank (Lurcpel plo as | gre

g - Keith Willey ¢ -~ -~ .1 |
- & Lath icoan assonatc professct Cf stratcgy ard ootreprenedrship at Lonodon

Business schoel He alse hie
OQroset i and =
charman he s resporaible for the effectve operaton of (ke Board as well

as Its goverrance He brings to the Fern bus ness ingependent conimercial

L varne s non-executive directornships and ad

rcles at I

Soarature Ccorrparies 1 his rale as ron-ereCntve

[ i BT A Q-HH'IC‘O‘ PO IS IO I dC GIENNA I vATE 20Uy INvesitmert,

corsulting and vanods barde-on operstional roles

Peter Bartlow | -

Foter hat over 20y cars exanonencd mate national iranc ra chintrastructue and ene g,

S12brof project and corporate funding, as
atteatics e has spert oo 20

FEdrs

Arenca and Nomara, finar Jirg acqu st s end grecnnola ore en Lz in e erergy

and infrastractore seciors His comuoinahon ¢f Scard-le.2l nnarcirg and cnera,

CARET EICA CART LA ET0S £ v sib-seTtors 3¢ ie of all

e 2077 che a3z 3 parucdlar focus or

arve bt 2 ders

1onar ke
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Fanagenient donbify, assess and inanage nsks D Tog prncipa. nsks that the Group are expesed o are
associated wath the Lioup’s business alycclves and destnbed betow, along with the mdiGating ao uens
strategy Ricks anse from externa, sources, those we take to reduce the poantal mmpact of the
which e imfcrent commercal nsks 11 e market,  We aise nclude our assessmert of whether
ard from cueratucnmal nsks corared within the hkcimooa of the nsk has moreased. doecreasod
syslerms  ana  processes  enrpicyed  wathin the remamned the same

husiness Owverall nsk exposure 15 managcs aoioss

the Group thiough the greersincation of activiiies,

both by sectc and geagraphy

Risk
Market risk: .
The energy soctor #
sign ficant turouenee and there s -
3 nsk thar forecast love & Of income
et achreved due to chigraes in
JClesaie energy R rif-take
contracts o jo\-e'nment subsdes s
e o ths orbule nrrent,
by potental sl e e
nteryention By o regalstor € alss

CANErENCT g

ST

ar sk

CENges 1N GoUer i Do
peSUlt F rSouUces 1MNCme SIres
wathrn the group cue to sddit <nal
levies

Sy Ay

Energy Division

Mitigations

e Ll e T i AR P AR i A At ke WY A

ontracts are entered welnor ax the oo
sererated b oo Lites

bac<ed oFa<e
ble Ol
SDCrErgy e

Me for g

portion ot
Lremg-term Qove
1N 2 ace, such 33 the <erew
Cscheme 39% of o
O

- the aov er‘ net and the

[T

RO

fror b

We Q“f'age

Zectr oty Ma Soh e conrnbute to an industre soigs
WAl Lol T ELErS ”'I 10 set fLiure requlatery requareients

Operational risk: .

evels of ene Lronuced rmMay
be lowsr than oiated due fo .
sub-cptimszl weeathier  condingns
crooerforrance sIues AT
equicment, which may result 15
(Jr\ﬁfgﬁ JNplanfies ooeerlime

Unprecictzolyy of fro weasthar o mhigaed
divershcal o0 of technalogies and -ccatarn of sites
Reqular seracing of assets s undarta<es 10 enture assets
are kept i guod condinen ard mrmimise e sk that asses
are unasailabla for a loener panod

Trsugh

Change

201 Y TR i AT T B b 4R 85

NTochar

LJ
T

Financial risk: .
Revenuct Fronvienss g_-
O Lae procecns fr

ctes gere
sles ars Gwer
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cted W ke decwed from

revenues

o

Construction risk: .
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Fibre Division

Risk Mitigations

ot R R Al oM

Market risk: .
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Lending Division

Risk Mltlgatlons Change

B ma ek - it s e AT s Bh L W e A e e e e I - JE. P

Market risk: o Tre teams pro-achively
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Group

Risk Mitigaticns Change

Liquidity risk:
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Corporate governance

Section 172 (1) statement
The Beard consider
requirert
006 (the "Act and have,
would be
success af the Group for the eneft of s membo:
as a whole thaving 1ogard 1o all stakenolders and
172800a-t) of the Act)
engden

that they nave adhered 10 the
ents of section 172 of the Comparmes Ao
n good faith acted in a

way  that most lkey to promote the

mattcrs set out in sectiop
n the

30 Juine 2025

decisions takern dunrig the vear

In the performance of s duty 1@ promote the
success of the Group, the Board has reqara to &
rumber of matters, mcluding the likely conscqgacnce
decizions N the long-term, and lstens to the
to bunld trusy
and ensare 17 fully understanas the potential impacts
of the de The Board fulhls these

by delegation ¢ committees and the
subsiciary

of arvy
views of the Groups key stakehclders
CISioNs it makes
duties partly
Boards of
within a corparate governance framework across the

undertakings, whoe  opeate

Caroup.

Atevery Board meeting a review of health and safety
groun,

35 well  as

acress  the fnancial  and  operational

performance, legal and  regulaicry

compliance, 15 undertaken, Tne Board also rewew
other areas over the course of the Tinancal year

ncluding the Group's business stralegy, key nisks,
stakehclder-related matters, diversity and inclusvily,
ervironmental matters, corporate responsbibity, and

governance, cemphance and legar matters

Principal decisions
We define prncipal decisions taken By the Board ac
thase decisicns that are of a strateqic rature and that
are signticant to any of our key stakelholder groups
The Board consdar that the icllowing are examp'es
cf principat decisions it made in the year ended 50

June 2023

« Bvaluatirg ara deciding to create a now siralegic

area of develupment by cxpanding nto e

rrchile netwaork market and becoring a Mokle

FRYNAT The Board
this opportunity as well aligned and
t the ~xstng hore breadbard

vintual Network Aggregator
considerey
complermentary

cperations, which woud help to deliver ieng-tenm

Vallle

he Group dec ded 1o further expand its footpant

mo the  hodsebualcing GuITIng
Homes, a weith

those of Lhivia and the Groups

sector  bnvoac

Millwood  Destgner Company

values simolar o
Millwood s congidered an award winring regional
in Keat which ot
s follows the

hamebulder basea arcurdd
100

Miade 1n F»’!:—)y 2022 10 dwersify the Group's asset

homes A vear decision

pase and er*terimg inte; this new sectar has bean

well thought out with long-toerm growih i mind
The Beard considered the cpportunity ana hicw
it aligned with our crjectives 1o mako a postive
ontrizulon

by burding

and erwviroanment,
address the UKs

to the communty
news homes to

shoitage of propenties.

The EBosrd decded to commence a groud

teotgan.sat-on which imvolved merging the four
Fern Fibre

focus on two weparate

FTTE business info ane new Dls.ness,
FRT_ will
Wwiorking

Tradng Limited

strategies. while closely together (1)

whilesale stratéegy,
ard onboarding multipte 15Ps

v ng the fibre infrastruciure
N AllPoints Fibre
MNetworks and (2} developing our own ISP service
and brand, thr(mgh
the poss
including sharehiolders and observed that the new
! change how the Board and

Cuckoo Limited. The Boaro

evaluated cle 'mpact on stakeholders

structure would ne

Group engage with sharehoe:ders or ther vicw of

the Group, but would be benerical in provioing

mmproved governance and oversight of the sector

anwell as en

rihancing the futue prospect
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Corporate governance

Business strategy

A Dusiness lnalery, §de

detalled Grour b\l:,'j-f;]'ﬁ,\t Yy thie

Boar on ar annua basis aod fommis tne as s ror the

TR s resgUtee  planonil o and den'omert

decisiers In mranng deosans concerre g the

Boara

shidte )y T b

Dusness plam the Fas e and

rogjard

e [N el

atters snohy o an IS VAo~

W

stakehc and the leng-term imzact of 1ts act.ons

e Gronp s fuiire and repataticn

Shareholders
Shareholder

telatinrs and gen=rahing snare oidor

thm Beaa s

valie = & key corsasrahen £i1

mmaking strategis dedimons The pome inegum by

webch e froun ST sngred Ol

YT Ca
stnrcagh e annnal teport 4nd fnsncial statements

which s to provde sharebiclders coth a (ol

urderstarding efthe Group's acuvities and ifs results

This

Irtormahon s

RIS oot sEbate At

www.ferntrading.com

Employees

The Caoaps emp'c

Soare fundannenta W the

The Pirectens full

o

>

rall s oo Gf thee Businees

ther cuty oc Certrusting Cuersaht 12

oy ees

cubadary Boacds

The dwcctos of tne subsidiar, undertakings manage

The qay W day diessn mMakny o slaay ana

= (hal

= alued sty

SOMMUrICatsn: vk Ciripls 5 oand ens

le are freated far 2

[Sle
TC sy Lerent and o

-

il nen’ L funy realise thas

chsn be mifonren ard corsuitcd

L es

Jenr sk gt b re rezlsdin

ectathah

RANida

crralart,

D Ard af

Urefre 3

et ke

fornnmce ndicalons

(RO Sl TS

casteand el and sarety

oo

The Al

workplate s a

Fizalih

[IS-9F

althvand satst ;s veporing

S2lng to

aina

[ (Cpmate pancies [AOCEAATEs are 1

sy

o Cloct Ine e

arid  calef,

RPNy

arat contraciors YWehore

I3

polental deficencies o irsues, ‘hese are folowed
Lo and vesaleen onoa bimety Dasis cath the RBoard

Raang cwcrs gnt 3F e Actions takor

"he

GO0 DURLLNLES achatigs ang rranagenr ent

of Ccottan operalionsl acties 1 oxternal sJpeliers

tere aclyities are outsouwr ed the Beard onsires

that they are mranaced by reputaie sapplers who

moet Al the relevant mdisirg and  reculator

cornmitnents s owell aé neatng omp es fanly,

SO 1Al snrvice

foo e

Frpected standaras are o
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Corporate governance

[he Board considers Octopus Investments Jmiled
key and wiith
responsiblity the  procsian of

and

to bhe 3 Lideiess palingt supplier

1o cperatiinal

oversignt. fnanc al adirinistration company

secretanal services
Community and environment
Tho

mrrastructure 1s at the centie of the Sroup's strateqes

provisicn aperation ol susiamab.e

atis

goals  Through its business actuvites the Group
seeks 1o make a postive coenmbuticn 1o the
comimunity,  ervroriment  and  econsmy  Jur

renewatie energy busmess 1s heipng the UK meet
its renewvaple cnergy targets, our fbre networs will
give people i rural communies access o high-
speed broadbana, and cur retirernent villages create
commurnties of pecple 1in then ater years, reducing
the stram or odr h=althcare soraces We are alus
b lding new homes to address tne UK's shornage of
properfies

Business conduct
As [rectars our intention 15 1o Bohave resparnsibly,
wy th

intedrity and N accordance wath the hugh standards of

ensung Managoment opetate the husiness
cotiduct and governance expected of a business suck
as curs Cur intention through our basiress strateqy
icutiried on pages 1210 1515 1o operaie in sectors and

work witn other pusinesees that shiare owr valaes

Business ethics and governance
ensuting that the

‘he Board 1w responsiyle (or

actvities of the Group and its valioLs Dusine
conducted incorpl ance withiihe lave and appucable
governance arid  regulatory  regimes and o
zdherence with prevalling best pacuce for the
relcvant industry This ncludes roviewnyg interna
conttols, ensurng that thare s an appropnate
balance of skills and expenence represenied on s
Beard, and ensunrg thal the fmandial statements
dive a trae ard lan viow of the state of affans of the
Croup Furtner detal can be found nthe statenment
of diectors responsibilies on page 548 Inthe year to
2025

faagged i this regaro.

A0 Jang no areas of concern have been

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Boards policy o empioyec, numan rights,
social and communily issues, envirenment polcy
ard ant-corruption gnd bribery matlers s discussed

i the Direclors’ Report on page 38 The Beard
actively promotes 4 comparate cubure that 15 based

o ethical values and behavicun ¢
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the acqguizition, Jonstruction ard due dilgence
process  qght  trough tw the on going
management  The Board have reviewed and
approved £S5 crteria sceafo to the Group's
pLsiness that are consigersed by commercial and
rmanagement leams, ncluding those operating
In the: fiore and housebu lding sectons "he day
to-dsy management and assessment of climrate-
reated neks and  opportunibes s tnerefors
undertaken by divisional managerment weams
and reported to the Board where necessary

Al of the above ensures the Board's oversight
and managemsnt of climate ciated 1isks and
cpportunities  includes  tunctions  established
1o provice good governahice over tne Group's
drasicens s enables the Board and subsidiary
companies toall be atyned o0 approach o

climate-related risks ard opportun ties.

Strategy

Disclose the actual and potential impacts of
climate-related risks and opportunities on the
organisation’s businesses, strategy and financial
planning where such information is material.

al

Describe e climate reiated rsks and
opportunites the ergamisation has identibed over

the short, medium and long-term.

Criern the Groups long-lenm exgernence In its
operatng sectors and strong hnks to s suppliers,
particularly 1 the energy and housebuwlding
sectors, the Group & weli positicned (o overcome
nsks and teke advantage of opportinitics arsing
from chrmate change Chmale-related risks and
opportunit €5 arc alse at the core of the Group's
sirategy and are discussed nght the way through
vessy, from Board lovel o the indredual

the bus

subsichary companies within the Group Climate
plays a part m shapmg the Group's lenag-term

Lusiress ctrategy and hinancal plarning

The Group's hore dasion vall semmars m gressetd

chase for the next three to fve cears, and

maragement eams consder how e manage

orrissiors and risks while ackieving s rapio
arowth Fible has g positive leng-lenm inpact on
the erratorment as once the infrastractuie 1s 10
lace and operatirg, it g seen as & low carlbhon
technalogy A wel construdied and opetstec
flare connection facilitates a reduction it carbon
emissions 1 the long-term due o the oclertial
foor nome working and smart cities

Im the Groups housepulding  division  orc
majar sk 1 ensurnng shor- and long-termre
construclon processes are managed In ne
with potential exposure 1o ciimate 1isks, such as
flooding The Group aims to mutigate ths ns<,
as all develonments watiin the houschuildimg
sector including retircment livirg! have technical
flood nsk assessrents carned cut befora land 13
purchased

The Group is aleo subject to regulatory nek
as all homes and dovelopments must sansfy
crvircnmenial  plarn g condiions, which
may Change &5 1equlations are nbicducen to
support the UK's frarsition to net zero. Ths
presents the Group cwaith e opportunity (o
gc above and beyord appucaile requlatory
standards for energy efficiency »f new buld
biomes and bocomc a teador ir this regard. It
1= mportant for the housebulding division to
satisfy all environmertal plannirg cenddtions
and  seelk anancially wviable opportunifies  to
csceec regulatory standards The Croup lOoks 1o
develop strategies aourd nrogrossive adeption
of Modorn Methods of Constraction URAMOCT
ncluding tmber frames, solar panews, an source
heat punips ard elect o vohicle charging posnts
shere appropnate Where possible, the Groun

Moyes ooerational assets onto renawab'e encrgy
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asseis 1o the hignest quality standard and ¢

peyond  the

oG

above  and relevant regulatory

standards by adopting MMCs wall impact the
Caoup's  operatimg and  mamtenance  Ccoste
further The Groups cost progctions  dre

capiured at pont of acqguis ton and maodcls are
upaaled rcgularly vath diversifcaton of supp hers
nsdrance oBtamoed

and approouate levels of

Thie Croupn s iemass plants operate a diversified
suppty chain of feedstocks and strategic stores to

ensure suffiicient tuel swores 0 case of failed fuel

sUpply
15 contractual recourse oblgaton

from extreme westner condinons, there

s bolweon the
site ard sappliers for pr(;)ter;uor'w against loss of

revCrnues

Chmate-related nsks atse have an impact on

acruunting esl mates and judgerients waithin the
firancisl staterments The Group's balance sheet
inciLdss a decommissicning provison relating

{0 the future obhgation o returm land anowhich

there are operaucna. biomass wind and selar

farms 1o ther cnanal condtisa This accounting

estimate 1s detorruncd 1o a significant degree by

the ‘utue dismantling and resteration costs, as
well ag the uring of the dismantiermers, all of

which will be impacted by phvacal climate ns<s

dand raw matenals required for resicraticn The

Group cngages with a tird party to perform the

assessment of costa o be ncurred, ncluding an
assessiment of tulure climate nske

Cescripe the resilience of the organusation's

strateqy takng into consideration different future

chmate scenanes. Including a 27C o lower

SCONaro,

The Group bheneats from a guicksr transition (o

‘oveel carbon econony. such as ina Jo0 climate

Falviay Dz limiting glohal ternperature mcroase

to well betow 270 whilst taking 1the stegs to

SOsLIEE W el tesilient 1o the risks associaned

walh scenarios such as a 4°C patheay

Under 31 5% scenar o) the worid will capenience

A signchcant shft away from radmoral fosal

liels towards renewable  energy  sowrces as

stries and b

LIS 1ess0s allks mip ement sreng

decarbanisation plans to reach ret ser. Delreery,

rthese simbitionss reqguires 3 sgnficant mcrease

Vine pace of cap lal depoyrent into reneveable

erergy. al of which leads 1o a growth in the

Group's acquisticn opportunities

it man rigk from a beneficial transition o

renewable energies 15 fror competition and

The

ne  potential for prce  cannipalsaticon S
Group's strateqy 15 resihen: to this as they focus
on Beng lcaders in the market and seek firet-

mover acvantages before any fonm of once

e1osion can lake pace Increasirg demand for

tne electnfication of ndustnes wall provide vast

deployment opporturtics for renevvable assets,
with sing

four electrmt"

y dermand suppoiting the power grice
cannibalizatior
diig sector could
n by facing lower

mitgating pnce
The Croup's ncusebuild also
benefit from such a bansilo
Feat

casts on onstallation of solar panels o

pumps as techinclogies advance and become

CNeaper o access.
Under a 4°C
trancimion to & lowe
and the

that the
has been
to construct and

scerato, 1f s assurmen
roarbon ecoreny
slowveer incentives
aperae renewables have not fieen farthcomimg
There s also the increased phrysical risk of more
intreduction

Whisst thes
Uthe Group's revenue potential, ths
and the

take advanage of ary

cxtreme  weatier  delayinag o

and operation ot renewable assms

¢ ol rrpact

would discourage competiton Greap

wonht e veell placed tn

opportunity that arcse. The Group's stratéegy
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Risk Management
Disclose how the organisation identifies, assesses,
and manages climate-related risks.

al

Deconbe the organisatiors pro cese for dephify g

and astersing Cirmate-rclated raks

gk are [

Carrale - rédated sideren Dy
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Metrics & Targets

Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess
and manage relevant climate-related risks and
opportunities where such information is material.

ab Dsclose the metnes used by tbe orgarisation
10 assess climate-telated nisks and Hpgortumtios

i e watn te strategy and risk ranagement

BroOcess

As mentionad under the Risk Managoment pillar,
rranagement teams assess the relevant climate-
related  rsks and  opportunites of  potental
acquericns in relabion 1o set crileria. The £5G
Risx Matriv used for our ernergy assets has
a total score of 15 with 3 score of 9 or more
required to indicate compliance with FS0G polcy
requirements

bl Dhsclose scope 1, scope 2 and If appiopnate
scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHGY emissions and
the 1elated rnisks.

Tne Group's locatior-based scope 1 2 ard 2
erieanns are disclosed 1in the table below [n
accordance vatn SFCR. the Group's scape 3
emilssiors Nclude only tncse relating to business

lravel

Throughout the year, wo have continued o

deploy capital in expanding the fbre draision

resulting 0 an increase I emissions as this s a

function of growth and Feadcount mcrease This

15 ughughted by the Group's Scope 2 missions
e ae

nsng by 55N TYZS caused by sncreased energy

consuvptorn, despite the overall emissions

reduchion across thie busiress While our fcre
companies are fociaed on the end goal of
butding a network, the aurmey aleng the way 16

st as nripertant

“he norease n emmissicns trom cur Fibie diisien
has beer fully offset by reductions i cmissicns
frorn cureserve povest Stes which accourt for
9% of reporled enmissions U 2L reserve poveer
sttes provide vital back up power o the National
S in times of peak demand, and ermissions are
expected to vary vear on year, due o wawations
I the energy gencraucn regured 1o halance the
arid ana sapplement baselcad power We have
thus seen a 5 2% reduction o emissions from
Wic prior year in cur reserve power sites alone, o
f.nction of the sites beng called upcn with less

frequency

The other pnimary drver of the Group's emissions
gre oub biomass plants, which account for a
further % of the remanirg emissions Cur
DICMAass plante ase & mix of straw, waste wooed
chips and other fuels of natiral ongims, which
alser have tie capacity to regenerate, to produce
electncity

The Groun has theretors scen a neadine
reduction in tonnes of CCZ2 enmisted o FYZa
compared t© FY22 of 5 8%, pnmanly drver by
the lower use of fuel In the reserve power and
bioniass sites that the Croup owns and speraies,
as descrbed above, only shghlly offset by
ncreases in Fikre emissions

FY23 Fya2
Emissions (Location Based) {tCO2¢e) (tCO2e) % Change
S o ) 22l BRs JETPR P Z‘h
RN 123 4870 '
RIS o LA 20 z7, -
Tota-r— ---------- 228,699 242,932 B
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Aggregated Metrics FY23
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Review of financial statements
The purpose of tig report 15 1o provide adational 1 Thore were vanous Changes 1o the operatunal assety
explanate: o mfornealion on the finarcal stalements @ donng e vear including the sale ¢f Darlington Pont,

In measunng our perfonniance the inancal measures a large solar site in Australa, ana Elvia cxpanding therr

that we use rolaoee those that have neen derred 0 south-eastern footpnnt vty the acguaisiton of

fro out oo ted resclis i order (o elninate factars 1 Millwood  Desigoer Hommes I March, owr B

tnat chetort vear-oneyoar compariscns . These are f businesses were suceess ully consolidated e one
colsiderad r‘wor‘m;A.ﬂP firancial imeasures P onew bosniess 1ocasing on \-vholesale crateqy and s
Doown IST brand Sunsequent o year end, Du'acca. a

Arcconchauon of thewe to he financial results canpe &
; - ) . Polarge wand farm oan Western Australa, became
found r note 28 of tne notes w the anaraal

Dooperstional ‘olowing & two-year  construclicon

staterme: : o -
¢ oprocess, and was solo for apreft of £22m n October

The fnancial statemonts show assets at amortised A3

cost, as such they do nat reflect the future va.we that

. To support continued expansion, we Dult up cash
we expect 1o denve from these busnesses To thiat _
- ‘ o ‘ Toreserves at vear end of £157m0 whch serve to fundg
extent accounting performance may differ materially @
. ¢ the operational needs of our Gvisions
from the shae prce and may noteflect changes no:
the full market value of assets or buunesses owred !
by the Groap :
(restated) Movement
2023 2022
E'000 £000 %
"800, 351 711,830 7
82, 017 194,917 LR :
(148,767) 55,888 !
I'endimg bes SRINIILY 439,535 360 901 RESTE £l |
Cant) 156,919 256,415 190 4981 =t
et emmt 1,001,265 793,169 208 094 s
et aeeesty 2,366,052 2,220,920 145 132
Financial performance Podmsions, particularly finre ang a number of provisions

The Group has reportcd a lcss before tzx of £149m § recognised agamnst  specific property  loans
tor the year ended 30 June 7022, which s & fall from Additionally, there are two insfances of extraoidinary
profit of L59m Testeted) n the rrior year Tais s drivent § costs ncluded in the financial staterments wihich are
primanty by expansion nour Abre sector as we 1onot expectec to reocour (15 restruciunng costs of
contnitie 1o growy our assets end operational base as POELIm asscc ated wih Lhe merger of Abre-to-the
detaled further in tis resort Similarly, overall EBITEA 10 premises busiresses, and 20 mnmpairnents costs of
decreased by 587 1o £82m 2022 LI195ml wiuchs 1 £22m associated wirh tradimg assets which veare sold

tnanly due o operational giowth i cur newer 1 stbseguent to vear ond

Tarraregs oo foe qderest 1ga denre o alier an araecatisat o
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Sector performance

Energy I The associated ansurance clam or roplacarront
Ag econoniic actraty and global cemand contmued 1 oparts and loss ohiovenue was setfled .n tull

loorermain ngh thiroughout the year, o too did § . . )
i 7t The aepact was oftset by the inciesse in the average
wholeszle energy poces, doven by movemerts in 3

T { ) opnce per oum for the dimion as @ owhole, as of
connnodily  prices i resulted i the Croup : A . P
o f N i l Poncreased to L1077 MW from £SO 5 MWH R thie
maintaining strong reveniues from energy generation ‘ PR

- T Doprior year a rmovernent of 10%
at alevel similar o 2022 acrass cur energy sifes, wath 1
revenue of L600m 12022 £590mi DoWhile  lotal oporaling costs remamed mostly

:oconsistent vear-on-year at £ 377 (Z022 £324m0 the
Qur generaticn capacity remancd cansistent year 1 e o ]
D Greup recorded a EsOmincrease in gas orocuremerd

onvear as there were NG substantial changes to o 3 )
: costs for rezerve power plans, driven by inflated gas

CREtgy genarating aseets Howeevel, produclcn was

prices iy the first nait of the year Corcspond ngly
margnally reduced due to Sretterton, ore ot our

EBITLDA also decreased by 13X (© £2372m (2027

omass-fired power plants, suftenrg soms morths @ .
N b F 9% Tl E2SEm

of operatonal downtime following a gearbox ‘ault

FY2023 Fy2022 FY2023 Fyaozaz

Production Production External External
{(MWh) (MWh) Availability Availability

'E;"“’-::':—ww T ) 991,873 1 l,lﬁtf"i.fﬁ-%‘s T ‘*M“é“;;/‘:wm - MM‘“:::I»:
Lariai | Gas 225,680 PV 96.2% aF o
R el = om0 405,802 Liih sl 94.6% a2y

sl 569,063 AR R 94.8% ST
RIS 876,374 81204 92.6%

Total 3,068,752 3,099,690
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Houschuilding operations cartabuted £130m (20,7
Lot (,}qup revenucs for the vear refiecting the
impact of Ncreased revenue in Ranoe‘ord, as well as
alull vear of clivis cpetations Duvia sold 152 units
I line v th pudcet, while

454 o L2%9rr

the year, and s parormirg
jefors racased 1s revernug by

arwd sold 47 uris

& change raccountng polcy resulted in the coot of
Rangeford communal areas bormg
fixed sssete furmityre. fixtures and eatapir

Capitahsed as
et and
amoitisea over the ifte of the site Previously, these

costs were immediately recogrised to Cost of Sales
nthe P&L Th nt has been agicod with our
auators and  has not resuited
restaternent  hiowower

increased by D15 the ¢

o rcatme
na prior yearn
fxed
nrent year as a result

Rangesford assets

Funding and liquidity

LU strategy withim our retiewabile encrgy businesses
15 to secure leng term financing &t conservative
levels from mamstream banks (0 enhance retrns, At
year end we had drawr £1,160r of external debt in
fhis part of the Groun, with a further C175m available
to be drawn

Thus &

have siable characrershcs such as

proach enables us to acodire busiresses that
ptedicratle cost
base, revenue slreams, government incentives o
proven techrology and as such have lower returns
that without leverage would be insufficient for cur
chareheldears U also allows us flexibiily 1N Anancing

ur businesses and rmanaging cash flow We beucve
that faling @ adopt thie shategy
negatve Impeact on pusiness relurn and shareholder

would have a

value over the long term U of o interest payable

s Fxed ard therefore we ale ot sigrahcantl,

expOSes Lo current mterest rate volati bty The Laroup

apples hedge accounung for interest rate swaos

which mieans any changes in the far valuc of tne

SwWHER 18 10CogrIsen I reserves cash flow medge

rescrver with the meflective porucn of e nedge
recogtied 19 the Pal The market value ol tne
swaps 15 recognised on the Baiance sheet as an asset

cr o a habulity, cepending on whetner the swap s

favourable compared (¢ current raes

e confinualy review friarcing arrar'igemerltﬁ Lo

ensiie that they are comoentive | optimized for
the reeds of the Lusress T:\ cnsure cash s
Mmanaged in an aqwl@ mannet, we maritain flexble
finance facltes wnich can he drawn o repaic to
mcel rmimediste Blamess needs. Spechoally, the
Cioup has access to g Revolving Credit Facility ot
£290m, which is irterlinked 10 the net assets of our
energy division. The flexhbility to draw and repay
funaos at shartnotice facihtates effecive manageiment
of short-terr cash fluctuations, which can be drver

b seasonallty of operating workirg capital

Looking ahead

At the end of the fAnancal year we confinue to
telieve that the business is positioned well to take
advantage of future growh apporlunities across ity
core busmess areas Lnetgy and lending operauons
are well colablished in the markel ana cortmue o
Mmiake excellent pogress with robust performances
In the new financial year Provisions taken acainst
lcans dunng the year i our lending sector have rng:
fenced challenges which are not mdicatve of further

problems across other leans 1n the sector

Depwoynmient into fibre contnues to roll out M ne
with expectations, while growing its revenue and
operatioral base. bales actvity in cur housebuwlding
division remarm sUong agjanst a Cha\lemqmg markel

ard are reporing srafts 1 line with bucgel,
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We expolt b aererale cInIng operahing etars
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oaddnon b e antidcated Sudoes fiv o

SN At e 2ae tie

ComEl o Lrase acscls

Jroesing our e and acschulding diasors 1o

it

PS Latham
Direcion

20 December 2024
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025,

For a summary of the Group s results, refer to the
Groap finarce review on page 31
The direclors nave not iecaminended payment of
a dividena (2027 ENILL

‘i'r RS

Tre directars of tne Companry who wee 11 office
duning the year and up @ the date of signing the
anaricial stalements were

FS Latham

Ko Willey

PG Barlow

1 Arthur

Z i
'Zﬂ

SM Crant appomnted 1 January 2023

S T P T R TAR I RS TR

Refer to note 23 in the Notes to the financial
staterments

IR T N I 6 N S L T

Reter 1o the Strateqic Reporl or page &.

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 12,

SR e NE

Refer to the section 172 statement o1 page 21

e e B O S N PR T NI |

The Group's ofyectves and poicics on Anancial ns-
managerment cluding informat on onthe exposure
G thie Grouo to credit nsks, haasdity nsks ard market
ek are cet out i note 21 to the financigl staterments
Ihe Group's pnncipal nexs gre set outin the strateq ¢
report on page 17

As penmitted by section 414¢ {11 of the Companies
Act 2000, the direciors have elected to disclose
mformation reoured to be in ine drectors report by
Schedule of the ‘Large  and
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Repaortsi

rMedim sized
Requiatinns 2008 in the strategic repaort

Frotine: oo oo st et

byt ey et

TR Tl

[he Board recognises that & corporate culture based
o osound ethncat values ard bebavours 15 an asset,
e Group endeavours 1o conduct its pusiness wath
inteatity, 1 an ethical, professionai and respans ble
marnnear,  treating o

GFT‘-DIO‘V{%E‘S CLstomers,

suppliers and partnars with courtesy and respect

peslo s

Applications for employment by disabled persons
are green full and tair consideration for ail vacancies,
Faving regard to ther particular apttudes and
abilities Should a person become dizaktled wile in
the Group's empioyment, every effort s made (o
ietan  them  in alternative

emgloyment,  arang

trainmg as necessary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023

ard of the proht or loss of the Growp and Corpany

for that perod I piepanng the financial ctatements,

the droctors are tequired to

« sclect suitable accounting police: and hon agely
thiem consisteatly

« stale whether United

Accounting Stardards, comprnisng FRS

apphcable K g
02, have

been folowed subject to ary matenal departures

disclosed and expiamed n the financial statertents,

» make judgerments and acccunting esthnates that

are 1cascnable and orudent, and
» prepars the financal statements on the going
concern basis anless it is inapproprale 1o presumes

that the continue n

husmness

Croup and Company will

Tne direcrors are alse responsible [or safequarding
the gssets of the Group and Company and hence for
taiing reascrable steps for the preverton and

detection of fraud and other iregularities

The drectars are respaorsitle for keeping adaquate
dccountrig records thal are sUMoent Lo show arnd
cxplair the Group and Company's ransactions and
dsclose with reasonable accuracy at ary time the
hinancial pesition cf the Group and Cormpany and
znable them to ensure that the hnancral statemerits
cormply vlh the Companies Act 2006

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance
ard mtegrity of the Company's webste. Legislation
i the Unitee Kingdorn governing the preparation
and dissem nation of hnanoal statervents may differ
freon legislation In other junsdictions

| B SEE I A

As penntled by the Artcles o Assooation, the

direciors have the benett of an mdeninity which s o
cuaibyng third party mdemmty prowsion s defined
[he

Act 2006

by secnon 234 of ne Zompanies

ndentrity was n rerce througnaw: the last financia

year and s corrently oo force

In the case of eacn dreclor o ofhce at the date the

Direciors Reportis approvedd

« Sofar as the ditertar s aware, there iz ng relevant
audit information of which the Group  and

Company $ duaitone sre anawae, and

» they have Lakon all the steps that they ougntio have
taken as a ditector in otder 10 make thenmselves
aware of any relevant audit information and o

cstablish that the Group and Cempany's auditors
are aware of that infenmation

This corfirmaton s given ard snould e irterpreted
1 accordance with the provisions of section 418 of
the Companies Act JLUL

Einat & voung LLP having been appomted m 2022
have rdicated ther will ngness o be reappomted for
be
aprontieent n accordance with secucon 455 of the

ancther terrm  and  will preposed for re-

Comparies Act 2006,

The Directors’ report was approved Ly the Board of
Directors or 20 December 2024 and signed on its
bohal* by

PS Latham
Direclor
20 Cecemibzer 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

QOpinion
Ferm

and
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

neonsslenc.es o apparent macnal messtatements,

Wi are required to deernmmne whetner s grees nse
tGa tnatcaarmisstaterient in the iinanoal statements
themscyes 11 Dased  on tho work w2 have
petformed  we conclude that there 15 & niatenal
misstatenent of the otner informaticn, we arc

reguired to o report thiat fact

e have nothing to roport i this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

Iry cir cpinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the aucht

« the inforrnaucn given i the Strategic report and
the Directors’ report for the hnancial year for

which the frrancial statements are prerared s

consistent with the financial statemenis, and

« the Stratego reporl and Directors’ report have
heen prepared n accordance with applcable lega.
reguirements

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

I the hght of the knawlegge ana understanding of
the Group and tho Parent Compary and s
erviranmoent obia:ned in the course of the audit, we
have not dertfied matena, misstaterments 1 the
Strategic report or Directors 1eport

We have nothing to report inrespect of the follewing
ratters 1n relation oo owhich tne Companies Act
06 requines us Lo report to yeu it N our coimnien,

« zadequate accountng records Nase Nt been kept,
ar returns adequate for our auait have 1ot beon

wceved tom branches not visited by us, or

« lne Parent Company inandal statements are ot
11 agreemenrt vl the accounting records and
returns, ar

« cortain disclosures of Lireclors’ remureration

specified by law are nol made, or

o e Pave not recenved all the mtfonmauon and

exnplanations we require 20 ol audit

Responsibilities of directors

As expamed  more  Tully o the Dieclors
responsibiliies staterment set out on paces 33 and
39 tne Direciors are responsible for the preparauon
of the financial statemerts and tos bomg satsfied

that they give a true and lanr oand for tuch

imtettal cortrol as the Mirectors dewemuine s
recessaty to enable 1the preparation of fnancal
ctaterents that are free rrorm matenal nusstatenict,

whether due to fraud o1 eror

I prepanna tne nancial statements, the Cirectors
arc responsible for asseswing the Sroup's and the
Patent Company's ability to confinue as a goirg
concern, disclosing, &5 appucalble matlers related 1o
going concern and using the goirg concerr: Basis of
accounting unless the Directors either inlend 1o
liquidate the Group or the Parent Compaty or te
cease oporat ons, of have ro realistic alternative but
to do se

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

O chieclives are to obiam reasonable assdrance
about whether the finanaal statemonts as a whole
are free frorm matenal misstatemert, waether due to
fraud or Crrar, ang oo ssUe an auditor's report that
INcludes our opimon Reasonabic assurance is a hugh
level of assurance but s not g guarantee that an
audit conducted i accordarce with 154s (UKD will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstaternents can arise from fraus O eoor and are
considered matenalif indwidually or inthe sqaregate,
they could teascnably be expected to influence the
economic cecisions of users taker on the bass of

these Fnancial statements.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanaticn as to what extenti the audit
was considered capable of detecting
trregitlarities, inctuding fraud
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procedares nome st Ot respOtsiDnties, cnthne
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5 owne
rvelvo deaberate

ves ULt g fromm error as frausy niay
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i steptesentaliong, o
o vhichk 7
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thrzegh collus or The extent
vable of
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the
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Joumals, large or unusual transacuons, or journals
meetng our defined nisk cntena based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
astimates for evidence of management bias.
enguiring of membears of senior management and
those charged with governance regarding their
knowledge of any non-comgpliance or potential
non-complance  with  laws  and  raegulations
that could affect the financial staterments, and
mspacting correspondence, it any. with  the
relevant licensing or regulatory authorities.

A further description of our responsitilines for the
audit of the finanTial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's websita at www.fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description iorms part
of cur auditor's report

Use of our report

This report is rmad2 solely to the Cormpany's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companas Act 2006 Our auddt
waork has been undertaken so that we nught stat2 to
the company's members thoase matters we are

t

required o state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsiility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work. for this
report. or for the opinicons we have formed

Gt A/%.%/LJ_P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor

for and on behalf of Ermst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2023
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Croup profit and tess account for the year ended 30 June 2023

(restated)
2023 2022
‘ . RIS £000 - ECO0O
Turnover ' ' 1 soo3s1 q1RiD
(SIS RRENENCR {526,367) 1386.008)
Gross profit - 273984 325822
SONTIRETE T s ¢ 5 {379,077) (835126
Operating profit/({loss) o (105,0§3i o 42,696
el e e ] 4,968 3850
e T o ber g S sl It 955 5,249
e 5 {1,045) 29533
[ il s : o S 713 130
ntorost paL ke ard s chaaes " {49,265) (25.270)
Profit/{loss} before taxation {148.767) 55,885'_-
I ER R SR RENISINS 17,208 117.868)
-I;roﬁtl(loss) for th_e-fi_nanciai—y-;;r- - (131,559) 38,020
Attributable to Fern (132,896} 14,642
Minority interest 1,337 6,622}
. S (131,559) 38.020
slive-ovo e Lt T o e Nele 20 d=mals e i Lensd s el e

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2023

{restaled)

2023 2022

o e N o ) ] £'000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year (131,559} Z8020

Other comprehensive income

r TR TR 39,599 71401
o T T ol ot Ty PR B LN L R SR T S S {9,093) 18,567

Other comprehensive income for the year 30,506 89,962

Total comprehensive income for the yea;-‘ o (101,053) 127983

Attributable to

» Owners of the parent {102,390} 124,605

+» Non-controlling interests 1,337 5,622)

{101,053) 177383
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Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2023

(restated}
2023 2022
e £°000 £000
leedasse“ e e e e e LT e e e e e e
heaninle asaets o 528,874 557708
lanegole auees 3 2,035,554 1,8G3430
Iroestrmgnts e 13,742 35452
] 2,578,170 2,486,550
Currentassets B -
17 263,616 184,479
Cebtors trclud ng Fleim 222 {155 1z 825,068 623,876
cue alter e thar are year
Cashal vack ancin bana 11 156,919 256415
-  1,245603 1,064,770
C-reditors: amounts falling due within one year o o (430,891) (258264)
Net current assets 814,712 806,506
Total assets less current liabilities B 3,392,882 3,2934096-“
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year It (949,946) (993 325)
Provisions for liabilities It {76,884) (78.851)
;Iet ass;;:;mmm“—- - ) 2,366,052 2,220920
Capital and reserves
Callsd g share capital 14 175,876 161,662
Shgme prevurm G ol 608,085 364.882
BAC Qoo Tt 1,613,899 1635569
ash floes bods noser e 91,516 51,817
Feofil and loss s count (210,530) 9791
Total shareholders’ funds o 2,378,846 2223821
Non-conrelong nteres s (12,794) (2.901
Capital employed - 2,366,052 2,220,920

Note 26 detaills the pnor penod adjustments,

These consolidated financial staterments an pages 44 10 95 were approven by the Board of directors on

20 December 2073 ard are signed on ther behalf by

PS Latham
Cirectar

Regislered number 126076356
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Company balance sheet as at 20 June 2023

2023 2022
o £000 £000
lFi‘xed a;sets - o ‘ )
2,991,990 2
S - - 2991990 2539

Current assets

wonrtr = 26,543 349888
CanltatLar ke doreara i 17.478 6422

' . 4a021 26310

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 12 (700) (449)

43,321 45 6561

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities 3,035,311 20858349

Net assets 3,035,311 2585839

Capital and reserves

Canen U hars Cap 8 175,876 161662
SHLE e L an el 608,085 364,882
Pt roae p o 1,986,457 1986457
Tl o 264,893 72838

Total shareholders’ funds 7 3,035,311 2585839

The Comparr, bas elected tolake the o eran o0 Lnaot seobion 208 of the Cornmanies Aot 2008 et 1o
. \ f

rresont the Company nrolt ard s accouns The prohs for the firancal pencd doalt wtk i the finaraia.

stetements of the Compar ¢ we CATIPT2E E2EE AL 0

e

2023

These fnancia, statement: onpages A4 1o w0 ware approed by the Board of drectcrs on 20 Docomaoe

arid are siyried crnother beiall by

PS Latham
[t

Lecstered roprioer T
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Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Totat Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest (restated)
(restated)  (restated} funds
{restated)
£'000 £000 £000 £000 E'000 £000 £'000 £000
: LAGETO 173118 1443257 114,979} 136,049 1,884,111 372t 1.887.842
) {4505 5849 1344
149676 173118 1440257 19.484) 41898 1885465 3iel 1,889,188
P - - - - 44642 44642 (6 622) 38020
- - 714751 - 7140 - 71401
SR
- - - - 18,561 18.561 - 18,561
- - 71401 18,561 88,902 - 89962
- - - 71401 65203 134604 5.022] 1279872
- - 195,312 - 155,312} - - -
:1886 181764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
161,662 364,882 16355659 51,917 8,751 2,223.821 12901 2,220920
Balance as at
1 July 2022 {restated} 161,662 364,882 1635569 51,917 9,791 2,222,821 (2,901) 2,220,920
Profit for the
financial year - - - - (132,896)  (111.226) 1,337 (109,889)
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 39,599 - 39,599 - 39,599
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - (9,093 (9,093) - {9,093)
of subsidiaries
Other
comprehensive - - - 39,599 (9.093) 30,506 - 30,506
income/{expense) for
the year
Totat comprehensive
income/(expense} for - - - 39,599 (141,989) (102,390) 1,337 (101,053)

the year
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Called up Share Merger  Cash fiow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated) {restated) funds
(restated)
£000 £'000 E000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

Non-centrolling

interest arising _ _ _ _ _ _ (11,230) {11,230)
on business v

combination

Utilisation of merger _ _ (21,670) - 21670 _ _ -
reserve
Shares issued during 14,214 243,203 - - - 257417 - 257417
the year . . _
Galepceasati0dune 475876 608,085 1613898 91516  (110,550) 2,378,847  (12,794) 2,366,052
Note 26 detalls the pioy per o adiustmerts
Company statement of chariges in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds

TR e i ese - - 130,312 19%.312) -
Caw ereen woae o o T e a4z 236741
T R 11986 131764 - - 203750
I I TN IS I - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,858 2,585839
Profit for the financial year - - - 192,055 192,055
Utilisation of merger reserve - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 192,085 192,055
Shares issued during the year 14,214 243,203 - - 257,417
Shares ¢ancelied during the year - - - - -

Balance as at 30 June 2023 175,876 608,085 1,986,457 264,893 3,035,311




45

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2023

Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

(restated)
Slle 2023 2022
7 _ E'000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities S T e
Pronbles i fe the e 1l pesr adnbntable et et ot e panee (132,896) 44643
Adjustments for:
Tos o onofi il we (17,208) 1/.868
[ieres] peloal o ey il nosee (> {713) {130)
Pt et able and ctheor Sl Conrge k. 49,264 25,270
ey o cdmn el O sLsidianss g 1,045 (29532
e s o Prod osncling salimigr s {955) (5,249)
Srnorie Al S and Popsey Lo ot intar iile 1 et ansets ) 43,991 45767
Deres sinn ol langible maed gocels i 103,754 101,802
I e et of e arsats 21,670 -
Forr cash ataff - onats 3961 3,040
Piower eats 2 de st oo e forsicin ¢ o hard {19,149} 118.044)
R I N {48,283) {19,829)
froreaverinlonieasg i Jobter {160,903) 31.022
A e e gl i O o 105,863 (173,957)
S ool nterest 13 1,337 6.622)
Tax rece vodipa i 8,528 25,853
Net cash generaféd from operating activitié; A {40,694) 41,897
Cash flows from investing activities - T
Fure bPase Sl s an s any andeetalongs et ol Cask asaunreds {19,176) {52.377)
Sale ot subisid an Lnae e tgs 3o N a=niors 120,521 101,778
Furct ase = tang {490,656) (322 448)
Sale ol 0 tanciste 90 (7.222)
Puncbase of nnhseod e stinernns {65,335) (124 203]
sale of wrlisted et e 10 88,000 105.000
Inforest v ed & 713 130
Net cash used in investinﬁg activities 7 (36“5;43) (299,340]
Cash flows from financing activities
Prococds frorn g o 284,617 201,719
lerest nan (186,453) (32,319
Repuayrnsnils 5 inancimg (49,264) (32.013)
Srocees o 1% 257,417 203750
Net cash genera{;t;;;o;ﬁnancing acti;i;i;-s o 306,317 341,137
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents o (99,496) 83694
Cashasd cask eguiva enls at the benminng of he o ar 1 256,415 172,478
acharge gamson sl ;% et f-,]\il-.-E]L-’..‘r"“'i; 724 243
Cash and cash equival;ﬁf; atthe en_d of th;g—yéa ro 11 156,919 256,415

Moto 20 dotails the pror perod acpstnens
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

err hradna by ned Uthe Cormpany 1 o pr et Compan. L mited ©, shares ard incorporates on L4 May

Thie conmpar 1= aonadied v Dngland, the Jnted Kirgdom and registered ander comipan narmber

176015560 The adoress of the req atered o ces o0 Gth Floes B3 Hocor Londor, Dgiard TTIN 20T

Statement of compliance

P Groups ard med wduasl hnandia statements s Fore Tradea ominen Baes becr pragarea i Comehans s wath

o~

the Drited kmgderm Acccunting Standaras mchding Fraroa Peportng Staraara 102 Tae Firarda,

e land DiRS Oz and the

rieg Standard apphcable o the Unnted Kingoonn el the Ropallio of

Basis of preparation of financial statements

cere bas s snder the hiatoncal oo

e d narceal statements haee Deen prepared ana Qo g o
modifed by the recagrnior of coran nraraal assets ard lanilities mezcured at fair value, and 0 accosdance

b e Comparies Act 2006 and apelicacle accunan ) stars lards e the Urited kngdorn The semcipel

couring polizies, aach bave been applicd consisently, threugniout the year, are set cul bl

“hie corsohdaled iraroal dtateroeats o ade the resulls O all sunad anes oned by Fore ading Lrad az
ceted e niote 26 st the ancaal firaraial statements Certair Companies of thewse subsidiar €5 wineh aoe listed
CHoOr

S0

NNctE 29 nave takern the exemption o shoasdin tor tne oo cnded 30 Jane 2023 penvaltad by

A728 of Coarpanics At 20 Ir order o allewy these subsiiiares to ke the audn exemptior, the parernt

compary has geen g statutoy cuarantee e e weoth socton 4790 of Companics Act 2008 ¢ al the

autstandimg net bak hnes a5 3t 20 Jane 2

Going concern

The Gacup's and tho Company s business sctivlies, tooetner watn the racrors dive!l, too atect s fanae

proenn perfonmance and posiien ase sel Lt tha Siratedrn. Keport on caass 41 1% The fnancial

Sroup, s cask floves liou -jn; oot o and bencaerg facilities are desorbed n the Srancial

recys On peges 3o F The prinadipa, niess of the Groug are Sor ot on pages 27 20

The Dnecwers pertoom an arcwal acing corcem reyie s taat consigers the roun € ity 1o meet ite Friancial

r"Jt':-\igat“:nr“E as ey rall aus [0 a penod of teebve montas after the date that the haanoa caements hawe

sessent T dete i ming s mether

Saberndgrrn] Tarkel Condiiorns miaraQemer” tha.ererformnedar ac

thcre are ar, craenal sacertan tes ang rg tat s ol Sast sigrefie sl

contrnius 2T 05 ¢ cooprErr e S AN el © 0BG D O8] R0

R T S o=
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Statement of accounting policies

I reachnrg this conclumicn the Dnectors have 1oy eveed the inancia impact o the

Lalance sheet srofs ard loss and cash flows wath specific considerat-on green to the 7o 14
Areverse stress lest veas cerforned on the bave case forecast to ascortain wnat stenanos vec id result in nsks

o the Group e hguidity poston Hhe st showed cven i an unnkely ccenano of a sigmbcant reduction of
revente of Sa%, the Gioup e able to sustam its current ouerational coss andmeet ali habilities 35 they fall due
for at [east a year fom the date of s gning these Mnancal statemerts when Lehsing the geanabic faciites

vethin the Graoup

Trie Group has a number of Fnancng facilties that cortain coverants requr g the Drenp i mantan
speciiicd hnancal ratios and comply with cortain other inancial covenants  [ness nancial covenants are
tested st least biannugdly, and, at the date of thic report. the Sroup s in comaliance vath all its Fozacial
covenants Stress tests on reasorably plausicle sconancs such a¢ a sigrificart recuction in =BITEA of 84%
over time ave been used o assess the covenant requirenisnts for the at least the next tyeelve roonthe and all
covenants have been forecast to be met even under the stress test scenario, 1N the g2y concern pencd

AL 30 dune 2073, the Group had available cask of F157n and headicom avallazle of Z175m including a
revalving credit facility of £290m Debt of £277m s due to mature in ess than ore year, with the remaindor
of £941m payable in more than ong vear The Growp's [adlties, repayment dates and unaraen amounts are
set oJt in Note 16 Loans ana Borrowings

Key accountng juagement and estmaes have beon made with corsderaton greer 1o the current econemic
outlook Key estimates include loan recoverability, valuation of weor< i progress, deccrminiscionng provisicrs,
imparrment of gocdwall and investiments, Bustess combimations and hedas seconting Sctals are set out
on paues SN 1o 60

Based on the above assessment of currant ccoromic conditions and the impact on the Group's fnancial

positon, Agudity and financal covenants, the directorns have corcluded that the Grows and the Company has
adeguate resocurces to continue i upetstoral exstence for the next 12 months Thus they continue to acopt

the gomng concern biasis of accounting n prepanng the antual financial statemerts

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allcws a qualifying enfity certam disclosure exemptions, subject to certan condibons, which have
een complied with, including nothcation of, ard no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Coampany s

shareholders
The Company has taken advantage of the ollowing exermptions

frem preparng & statement of cash flows or the basis that s a qualitymg entty ard the censolidaes

staternont of cash flows, includea in these Francal statements inclided the Comrpany's cash flows

1 brornthe firarcal nstrument disclosures, required under FRS 102 paragrapns 11 39 16 11 484 and parauraphs

1226017 79 as the piformation s provided 10 the conselidated inancial statement disclosures,

ae froen gisslesng the Company key maragerment perscnnel compensatior, &8 required by FRS

27 77

paraqraph 33
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

[T

undertakings made un tooths samie accountng date Somtra-orcus Balasces frarcactions, imcormo and

anscudated fmaranl statermonte nclade tbe resalle of o Trading ~aand all ks sis

expinscs arc Cmmmaied ne tul e cersosaatln The results of sabs dary Lrdertakngs aooureo or uisposed
of dinmathe pencd are mouded o excluded hom o inzorms slaterent frenri ne creo G date CF acep nsiticn

ordeposal

Al underiaangs eer shicn the wroup exercises sontrel beno the posd fnaccal ard

<O a3t o chtam bonente fom ther actiaties, ars Lonsalidated an

Zrneralimyg oolice dary andertakngs

wre a sdbudiary nas dfferent aurtng pelicies 10 0e Grog

adpstments are made o thoso

Sothe Groun's oo

shstidiary finanial sie

SeLNthg policies wasn prepanng e consolidatea

finanoal saterents

nCoalcs oo

Ay saipsiddiary Lnderiak ngs or acsc cor accuned dunna the cea are ircluded ao o o fromn, the

dates Of chanue of control or chiange of sgomuant inf uerce respectively
Where the (ooup nas anttzn 3 pul opuon over shates neld by o non contralling inteeest the Group

derecgrises the nor cortallmg mterest sncd e

ad receaiised contingart defer-ad consideration hakal,

st other pa, alzles for the estragtea smicunt Lhely 10 oo paid 13 e ner-coniraliing i ot ¢ g f.se o

= opuos e readual amount, reprecentng e differenc e between any corsderation padiosyabie and

tee nen-contrelling nierest’s snare of nel aseels as gooaal Mowernontd o thie estinated

bty aftcr mntial reccarition ace recsamisod as goo

Faoreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Cronp finanaial statenients sre presentec 1 poend sterl o and roundee to thausarn .

T Tompany s fune ional and prosentatios Corme e, 15 oo

Tl 0 S TOUP e T INGUSENnTS

ii. Transactions and balances

SCHLIGN SUIFENc, Hansadhond are tanclated o e funchoral curency usino tne spot exchance rates at the

dates of the ancactiors Al each per od end foreign Carand , manclary nores are transiated osirg tg

08
rate Nor ronstar, femie rreasures at Fetor cal cost are trans.ated Lsing the exchange rac st the date of the
st

tior anc non monctary omrs measerca stolar vaiug are megatares usird e exchanige ate whers fan

36 dleterr e Hians and

3 ExlhAange gars ang msses rstuliniy 1om the settlement ot tras

rates of ione

aron at pencd eng sxcha ers and habilties dencmn nated i forcgn

“oogrized athe profit ar s sis acoour:

e Aats 37 1DTTET gre nreCenien 0 ins Promt SN CRs ar oo nt s Trar s e et

ili. Translation

The tred ra Sl pownds sterling @0 the

rOe rates

rolLdirmg ac

orthie L es

ArSing IOoacna o Sne wans acd sUtho Saoar g9 ates ro g st the

At s rorm b eeteanelat o o0 on

LI’I’" T

S5 T INCOM AN Al

“onrldhng nterect gy
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Turnocver

Thie Croup operales a rumber of classes of nusress Revente s denved by tne following

s ENCIgy
Turnover from the sale of elecne by generaten by solar far s wind Qoneiaing sssels, 1esorve poves) plants
and siemass ard landhll sites 5 recognsed onan aciuals basis 0 the peniod i owhich bt s generaicd
Fovenue from long e governmont acked offtake agreements, <ach s tne Renewable Dcligaucn
Certnficaton (RO scheme are accrued i thie oenoa i which it relares 1o, Tumover fronn the sale of

fernhser vy bomass and landfill husineswes s ecognised on physical dispate b

+ Lending
Turncver represcnts airangement fees and mterast on leans proviced to customers, net of any value added
tax Loan interest 1 recognised on an aocrua: basis i line wiath contractual terms of the loan agreement

Arrangement fees arc spread cver tne ite of the loan o which they relate

» hibre
Turrover 18 recogn sed at the far value of the consideration reccived lorrternet connectiaty and related 17
serdces provided n the nonmal course of busimess, and 15 shown net of VAT Tarnover s recagnised based

con the date the service 15 orovided,

e Housa alomg
Turrowver is recognised o egal compiction of the sale of property, tand and commercial spaces Turnover
fromm housing association confracts s recogrised by reference to the value of work compleied as a
croporidon of the totat contract value “arngver for retrencent Living 1s recognised when the significant nske
and rewards of ownerstip o retiresment propertes have passed to the buyer [Ln legal completon) the
ameount of revende Car be recogniseacliably, and itis probable that the cconemic benefits assodiated witn

e transaction wall flove 1o the enury

Employee benefits
The Group piovdes a range of benefirs 1o employees, including anndal bonus arangemerts, pad holiday
arrangerments and defined contibution pension mans

i. Short-term benefits
Shaort-terrn benefits including holiday pay and othar similar non-maonetary benehts are reccgnised as an

gxperse in the penod oy which the serv co s received

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A dehned contnbutior plar = a pensior plar undar which the Group pays xed contnbuucns ino a scparate
entity  Cnce the contnbutiens have been gad the Group has no fudhes psyment abligabions
The contributions arc recognises as an expense when they are due Amourts not paid are showr i accruals

inthe balanca sheet The astets of the plan are hela separately from the Gronpn irdependently administered

funds.
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Share-based payments

ash scutled snare-cascd pa, nonts ard measar2d al far vahue at the balanve sheet aate The Oroup reccg
sl

r-‘—‘._,

4 lsbi vy at the balarice shieet date Dateg HELe tal vaeal, takrig it account the estrmated aumtb

tnits that el acigally o<t and ho carent propert o of the vestng penad Chenges 0 the wauc of i

habihty are recognised o the nsorme state et

[he Group hss ro esuity sclicd anangsmicnts

Finance costs

SOt st
Iy
ST tae assooiated cap tal nenament and releascd to e proft and

France sare Cnarged o the pront and loss accourt coz tre terrn af ihe decc using the ctfecty

racthicna o that the amsuet chargeo s at o constart tre =0 the caring amcdnt sshe costs are nit

teccgnized &3 8 reduct on it e proceeds

ey zecout aver the term of the deb:

Current and deferred tax

ygriscd n the stawemaort of incorra and 1ota ned earnnras, 2acept that a change st butable teooan

iten of incorme and CHPEN IR T%‘-"""l]’\lfi9CJ AS CHIST COMIeensive Nemmme OF 10an 1iem TEC"I‘EV]T"HEGG directln

O, S gQrises in othor compretansve mosme or directh i cquaity rospactvely
Trie current oo e tax charge s calcalatec or the basis of Was rates and aves that nave hes enacted oo
substartvely enacted by the balancs sheet daten the counties where the Coropany coarates and aener31cs

e e

Deferred palances are recogrized nrespecy 28 2l b g dferences thar nave onairatza but notr

the Balance shoct date oxcept that

« Thgecogrten of deferad tay ascets 1o nuted 1o the extarn that 1 s o obable that woll berecomen

acarst e roemanl o ot tas aabi bes o cdaer foiore laxab o prois, and

cdeterred 1a< balances are reversed IF ard weher al conditions ror retaning asscoaled @« aliowiancos

Flave earn met

Lefered t3s Balarces arg 7ot «

rorespect Lf rermaner differences escoptin H',F[';{:Ci o BLsiness

corehinatians, whien deferred tas s recegrised on ty differens ss heteeees the far values o & S acgJred

ard the future ay deducthon: avalabls for themr ano the d “oronces of of liak iities

acared and the amount that woll e assessea for tay Deferrel fans determined usng o

sty enated by thie b = shieet ds

T T S Sl

Business combinations and goodwill

SN el Smb rahions sre scTiuntes for n a2 pachace mcho

sthe fsp g e of e

s Aderston alesr LED e zuec A o aespmic g

R Sr= .',’Ii,‘,lié Lo o Geent PR P B S ALPLE I N - DU R Ll )
i Covtn tne oraiderattr 3 tae date of Potrancas o

AR IO

TG T sert

s CanT I Re Masrel e an, AT Tate The g e 15 ne rraa Bted L g0
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Goodail recoansed represents the excess of the far value and cirectly attnbutabie Loste of the pur('iha&e
cons deation over the falr values to the Sroup's rlerest i ihe identifable et gggets, habiies and contingor
labilitics acguired

On acquisinon, goodwiil 15 allocated to cath-generating urits {CGUST that aie expected o hanehl fron:
the combimat or

Goodwill 1s amarticed over itz cxoectod aseful Ife which s determimoed basced on the estimated lifespan of the
assets acquired Where tne Zroup s unatle 1o make a rebable estimate of usefud Die, goodwill 15 amorlised
el poncd not exceeuing e years Goodwalo s ieviewed ard assessed for mipainrent ndicators o ar

annual pasis and any imparmert s charged to the proht and loss

Tangible fixed assets

Tanaible fixed assets gre «fated at cost less depreuation Depreciaticrs proaded at rales ca'culated 1 wnte
off the cost of fixed asscts, less theit estimated rescdual valuc, over tharr exsected useful ves Depreciat on
comimences from the date an asset s brought into service Land and assets in tho course of construction are
not depreciated Tangble assets ate depreviated cver thor estimated usetul lves, as follows

Land and buildin gs 2% 10 4% stagh 'L lme

Foweer stations a 3"/1 to 5% straight line

fFlant ard rr'1ar_'i'u.r1-e"?-rj;;- ” " - 4% 0 33/ straight l|r --------
flemc:rkgssets A% 1o G% straght Ine 7

Assers inthe course of corstruction are stated at cost These assets are nat deprediated untl they are availatle

for Lse,

Whete faciors, suoh as technclogica, advancement o1 changes in market price ndicate that residual value or
useful afe nave changed, te reaidual value, useful lfe or depreiabon rate are armmended prospectively to
reflect the new circurmstances The assets are rovicwed for impainment if the above faclos indicate that the

carrving amount may be irmpa red

Gains and losses on aisposals are determined by companng the proceeds wath the carry:ng armount and are
recogn-sed within proft ar loss

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are slated at cost less accumulaied amoertisation and accumusted impainment losses.
Amortisat onos calculated, using the stragnt-une methad, 1o allocate e depreaablo amaount of the sssete 1o
thieir residual values over tner estimated useful Lves, as fobows

Development rights 2% and 30 vears
Software 210 10 years
Arnortizabion exzpenses are mcluded i administrative expences Developmaenrt nahts relate to slanming concent

o bula a sotar farm ang a wird farm acquired On acquisitios
YWhere factors such as changes in market price wdicare that residual value o uselul Ife have changed, ths

residual value useful life or amortisaton rate are amended prospechvaly torcllod the new areumstancn s

The aseets ave recewed (O mparment f the above faciors indicate shat the carcang amount may

e nimpaired
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L.eases

sarmert consders

A ICeptior Tae Uroup assesess a]rePnV'th &t

ansfer the nght W Lie asents e as

S

OWCT TS arangemienl s G contams, & ease Pased or i sunstance of tre arar gement 271 oend

lzase should be classined as etbier a firarce ease O an eherat g [eas,

coels thal framcfor sygbstartaly all trie s

ards noidertal to canershipn are Classifo

nnance leases Finance eases 3¢ Capitslisea at the commie-cerront of the gase at the far value Gt thie sases

A e

35T and deprecialog oo the shorter ¢F the lease weim a7id thie estraated wseful life of the as
agesessad formnsarment at «ach reparting dats
Leases that do not nansior al the nsks and rewsarns oF ovnersup are Classiec as operairg gases Favmaonts
Sndder opseating lesses ae chanmed w the pront and loss account or & suaghl ine hasis over the perod of

1o lcase

Investments

Tre Carrpany bolas nvestrenis in a submidiary at cost [oss

urulatedimpa reaent osses If snompa reont

el estirmate ity

loss & subﬁ(:qu(:;'w sresversed s carping arrourt of the mvestment s crcased 1O e ey

Cut only W the et that e e iaed Car mg anriart does nut exceed e Zarreing

e heen aeterrmined bao Ne nnsarment (08 een red COnised in pror penens S oee s

of anompsirmens o5 s recogn sed in the proht ana loss accora

Cash

Casharcludes castom hand and 4 Latle crocma Reemiclod cachirerrssens cash o which the

Groun dioes ct Rawe e viechiiegurateny, o lega resLremonis rastr of tne

1se of the Cash

Stocks

Ravsimatenals, spare parts and consumables are valued al tho oo o

I ;

ot andd net realhable wahie Whiere

NCCESSAr,, 8 Oreysan 5 rrade for
rethod

scdetenpeireech onthe firss

SosTrrve g and Jdefectie <to

iy, firss-n;

< OVEr CNe s LS miarths ard o s S

a. Geen vaded af the s oncal Zosl ner tonao of ot Ot

colaal stack basy and amorthly Siocks s fretar f

frped sabee slae v the e

soatgtedf At

el stz

SRS FURETIS I T

CRE DL LD LA A

Larciar s LAt ano el
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Accrued income
Accraec mcotne L iaans s calcalated at the rate of mteresy aol Ut m N loam contracts Frercy ndome s

auorued over the pencd i which it has been geniecated

Deferred income
Deferred moome 1< rocagniced in accordarce wath tha 1erms sct cut i the contact Deferred noomrie 15
released 10 the profit ard loss acceunt i the penod o which o relates

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 10210 respect of hrancial mstriaments

Financial assets

Basic inancial ascets, mcluding trade and cber receyahies and cash and bank balances ae nimally recogased
at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a inarcing transachion, »hare the transaction s
meastred at the present value of the future receipts aiscountcn at a market 1ate of nterest Such assals arc

suhsequently carred at amorused cost using the effective interest methiod

At the end of each reponing cenod fhaancial assets meastired at amorbsed cost are assessen for Oljective

eviderce of impairment, if ar asset s rrpanad the impatment loss 1s the difference botween the carrying

discounted at the asset's anginal effective interest

amaount and the present vaue of the estmated cash flows
rate. The impanmicrt loss 5 recogrused i et or loss

Cther financial ascets, nciuding mwvestiments in eguity nstrurments which are rot subsicdhanies, associates or
jont ventures, are nitially measured at far value which s notmally the transaction pnce Such assets are
subseguently carned at far value and the changes infar value are recognised in proft or loss, except ihat
neestments it eguity instrumerns that are not publicly traded and whose fan values cannol be measued
recalily are measureg gt cost less imparmentl

Financial assets are derecaqrised when (a the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire o
are settled, or (bl substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred o another
party ar (clcentrol of the asset has been transferred to another party who bas the practical agity o unilaterally
sell the asset to an urieated third party vathoul imposing addional restmictions

Financial liabilities

Basic firancial sabiblies including tade and other payabies, bank loans, lcans from fellow Group comparies

ard preforence shares, are nitclly rocagnisea at ransaction price. unaless the arrangemoent constitutes a

financing transacton, where the debl instrunient 1§ measured at the present value of the futlne 1eceaipts

discounted at a market rate of interest
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Key accounting judgements and estimates

The preparaton o inancial stateracnte in comphance wath FRS 102 requires the use of Cortain cnucal
accounting estrmates 1L alse 1eguires management o exercisc judgenient woapplyimng the Carnpanys
accountng polivies Estimates and udge ments are continually evaluated and are based o hrstonaal
expenence and other factors includinmg expsctations of future events thal arc celieved bt be easonable unda
the circamstances The key esumates and judgements iy presanng tnese inancal stalements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loans and advanc es1G Cgstemers, including associaled accrueaineome balances, srerevieveed lonimeatment
ona biannual basis I considering the need for a provis.on, management determirne then best estinvate of the
expeced future cash flows ¢ a casc by case bass As this estimate relics on a certain nurmber of sssumphions
aboul future events which may differ friom aclual oatccimes, ncluging the borrower s alzlity 10 repay INterest
ard capral due 1m luture pericds, this grees rnse to jLdaement as fo whether there iz g short‘all between the
carrving value and the far value of the detior balance

Management note that provsions against lcans and advances 15 & crnticat ostimate and have thaerc’ore
perfonmed serisiivity analysis on the prowvsion The results of the scrsitvity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- ore per cent nithe amount provided aganst e estimaied balance at nsk vould Fave resiulied 10 £3 6m
lessimicre exponditire bemy <harged to the income statemert durng the penod. See note L2 for the Carry ng
amaount of the debitors und provisions at G June 2023

ii. Value of property development work in progress (| WIP’) (estimate)

Froporly development WIP < reviewed 'or impanment on a pencdic basis 'n considenng the need for a
provision  management detenmme ther best ostimate of the recoverable value Managoment engage an
expert oxternal valuer to provide key assar plions about futur e events whuchimay differ from actual cutcomes,
nclucing proporly vadanens, raie of sales ano aevelopment Costs.

These estimates give nse 1o udgerment a3 10 whether there 15 a skortfall between the carrying value and the

fair value of the balance as at the 30 June 2073 Post year end, management bave revievwed the assumpt
uced Lo determing the value of property deve c-p“nent WIF and have cbhserved rno changes i perforrance
that would impact the valuation as at the 30 June 2023 See note 12 tor the carrying amount of the property
developmneaent WIP

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) {judgement)
The Croun owns one ensigy generating suhaidiary in Australa which has enterad 1m0 purchase price

aqreemenrts (PRASH i 2015 and 2021 Trhe PRAS include a contract for diferences "CiID" whereby the
subsidiaries payfrecene amounts from the cusiomer hascd on the differences between a hxed seling orice
and the actual prece for elecinicoty soid 1o 11e Australian energy market The directors beleve the confract
autsde the scope of RS 102 sechion 12 as b s tor the sale of a ron-fAnancial item and the CHG s typacal for

ch arrangements Therefeare it s being accounted for urder FRS 107 section 23 as a revern..e contract with

varab.e considoration. ratber than revaluing the ertre contract to lair value

iv. Business combinations (estimate)
The cost of a busress comaranon s 'Fe far value of the consideration gyen. Jabiiles incurred zlus the
costs directly attnbutable ro the busness comb naticn Far value of these comibmations 15 a key estmate and

mote detals are provided o pages 594t 55
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
FE D10 500 100 des CETMISSnnIr e Cosfe s mMessrod al miatagen Ls pest 2stimas ©1 e prescrt calide of
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bl ganon
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vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
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Ll e

Analysis of turnover by category

2023 2027

o £000 £'000

Frevig, per @b = sOnd0 rOS o [ dned e 393,562 365,958
Frie gy 9« na Gl - bl miazs and gl 212,158 225526
Hoalibgsre opetahions 54,849 45978
Hornee by 74,932 25034
Pk g cratinne 16,237 89830
- o N ' 800,351 711830

T e feormn Hesith o are Goeratic ns s £ T (2000 L0 b b relatens v i s ot reterre b sillage Loty

At Leh Qe @007 F s G re SO0 TG e 0SS 1o 1o

Analysis of turnover by geography

2023 2022

) ) £'000 £000
(e e YT o AR b B . 5 07 L 5 B o150 e 60-3‘911
Europae 127,287 84433
Reolo [l 3,884 23486

800,351 711.830

Other income

2023 2022
£°000 £000
Listrdate Jarmagss ang nedance proseeds 4,968 3,550
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
2 i

Tz stated arter Chaaine pcrEaimirg,
2023 Ry

_ ‘ £000 t 050
B ‘.'-ln\'—_.r e -'“1"'\‘1\?*-. .-,--.-r,t-.“w r = - 43,05; o 57,849
S R e T 936 /013
D st o T e e T e T 103,754 11807
Foe o v ot s sy L W P le 21,670
TR R I ST AT P31 e N SRR R BT RNRTEN I o S TRRRUEPTM IS WA
ool alen =nlr 53 =5
T TN TR TCT O P T B S R T R 1,129 819
I L e TN L R L 564 246
S T G Al = e T RAT e ey e 507 482
R = R AT S N AR o 650 7772

Sty ey e et 12,677 13783

2023 2022
- o _ 7 £000 £000
RRCTHDrCINTe ST T ‘ - -I‘;A,EE‘;W e 8:;4 52
o 10,168 7041

S e T 7 3,304 2233

108,029 95706

Doentnbuhor schemes fonns cimnplogees o e Ul The arecnt recogn sed &t

an experise tor e defned connbution scaems s Lo i thie table abon g

The monthtly average humber of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2023 2022

L o ) o o o Number Number
DA o o T Treer 0 10w
IR RE TR 851 631

5 =

1923 1666

el e, Tad o Gher e pones b vogn T e i g o renn s sndad ST dive S02T 020 |8
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- S N R

2023 2022
£'000 _F000

Coames e PR DI e e s P e

i:in'rl-'r'-lw‘n‘u':-r'\t‘-: - 293 176

)

Curig the year na pension contihations were maae i respect of U direcworns (2022 none;

The Group has no other koy management (2022 nonol
3 .

5L [ e e

A number of subsichanes of the Group operate a cashi-settled LTIP ¢ gualifyirg emnloyecs. whereby
employees render seryv ces in exchange for cash, the amourt Hf which s dotenmired By eference o e
valuaton of the underlying subsidiary. The fan value of the Lablity for the aveards made 15 measured at cach
reporing aate and at the setterent dale [he fanr value 1s recogrisea over the vesing peroc The ameunt of
cxpense recogrised takes ntg account the best avalacle estimate of the number of urits expected to vest

nnder the service ang performance corditinns underlying esch award grantéd
Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees
2023 2022

Number of Number of
awards _ awards

= o NS m A DRI P R A AL LTI GV T e 0o WAy GEUE SRR

Cieering cdsariding Laler oo 3,678,314 1,914,751
Dheseerrenl dunne the ear (122,417} 1763563
Closing outstanding balance 3,557,897 3678314

The total charge o the year was F3961 000 12022 L3133 000] and at the S0 June 2023 there was a habihity
of £5.464,000 ncluded wathin aeditors greater than one vear 2022 £2,407.000).

6t

Interest receivable and similar income 2023 5022
. e - o o £°000 £000

Ircercst onoparik naanoes 713 130

Interest payable and similar expenses 2023 2022

(restated)
N 7 ) o o N o E000 £000
" i T T ae.s22 | 2360/

Arncr bzt sr o se e uats oo bank GoreT s 2,943 2.598

st lss o dorpeanee firancel polourmets 0 11,235)
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7
a) Analysis of charge in year

frestated)
2023 2022

£'000

Cur-rér'\t tax:

I {99) (297}
623 4770
2,089 5.641

2,613 11,114

Deferred tax:

RTINS TR | R RN T R S {25,748) B.22/
A e L N PO P ST I 7,285 13741)
Tegs r lAa ranes {1,358) 5,268
Ve ' ' '  p9.e21) /4

Tax chafge on profit/(loss) on ordinarry activities 7 " - {17.208) 17868

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tam ansesen for the yzanis e 12022 Bghern thanthe st card 3t S corporation tao s tho UK e f 200
2027 9% e oifference s are explancd belo

irestated)
2023 2022
o o o E'QOO E‘OOOV

Profit/{toss) before tax (148,767) 55 898
I {30.497)

Lyrm ol e, o one Tae g

10.619

S tas b LRt 20 Do

Foperzes o il a s ot p LD e 12,874 11,723
Colerete (5.407) i868)
R P BT R PU {892) 18100
I D L I NS 7.896 145
B {1,182} 5041
Total tax charge for the year 7 (£7.208) 17,868

c} Factors that may affect future tax charge

Tre P s S 2021 engored 2n 270 lur = 2000 13 i
2 Deforren 1.0, Loz

[ Rl R 1 LA P T

LI R UV e A
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2 O I PR !
Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights
Group £000 £'000 - £000 £'000
cost e it e 8 e i e e e o e s o e bt
ATl - e 3,089 743,456 15,314 761,859
A e e e pus s 6.612 6,565 - 11,810
corrbimal s e S
Addcht s 2,047 14,105 - 17519
Crupasais - (3439 (10,216) {13.655)
T3l e 71 ans alon - - - -
At30June2023 11,748 760,687 5,098 772,533
Ac;mulated amortisation o o
Aol Ay 119 202,475 1,557 204,151
[l el (22) - (1.442) (1464)
Lexes o trarielanien - 1.981 - 1,981 i
Iriesamrienl - 936 - 936
CTharae 1o e vean 1,657 41,263 135 43055
At 30 June 2023 1,754 246,655 250 248,659
I-Ninet book value “ ; . _
At 30 June 2023 9.994 514,032 4,848 528,874
Al S Le S0V 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708

The gain on translabon of foreigr conency denomirated goodwil 15 recognised i other comprehensive

mcorme Amaortisation of goodwil s charged (o adm nstratinn costs
Details of the subsidianes acquired dunng the year onded 30 June 2073 car be found in note 27

Dunng the year the Group daposed of a solar sarm in Australia Development rights relating to this sale were

210.2m vtk accunulatod amortisation of F14m.
Friparment of £0Sm has been recogrisec on goodwill (2022 £79m)

Mo assets have been pledged as scounty for hubilites 3t year end (2022 nonel

Tre Colnpany nad nontangibe assets at 30 June 2023 {2052 nore!
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
9

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buildings stations machinery assets construction

Group £000 E'000 ~ £'000 E'000 ~ E'000

Eo.st,,,_\ . . I e PRI - e e o ek
S UL 0533 3801 L7581 118.68¢€ 310170 2.504.3/1
v 8458 1.783 48.388 HETIRY | 252,052 548,743
o i - 453 - 469
R N - - 152941 - - 13.294;
T e - i33 (39357 20,331 (73,236} {92.189)
Lo - - 1242268 {1..743) 154 1245218}

At 30 June 2023 18,991 320,987 1,508,751 275,329 588,824 2,712,882

Accﬁmulated dep;eciation
B T T 4592 107189 4G94 742 4417 - 610,941
N T A S AN 1883 15,604 72120 14137 - 103,754
[ - 13 [15,95C) - - {15,932)

T 145,827 118,750 Aay - 141,120)
RSO 21020 - 21,020

e e - . (1.32] - - (1.325)
At 30 June 2023 o 1,669 122,811 533,847 19,001 - 677,328
h]et book value

At 30 June 2023

-
o
ol
[ d
N

198,176 974,904 256,328 588,824 2,035,554
211882 1A2CL1ES 114.269 316170 1.893.430

w
[te)
I
()

[Tl INaTets RN R TINIROCTRT ! TR LS

[benet car g ancant of avsets neld wrda Fnance e indd itk nas

EL2= 0000 for

- B ISP
15 Ll 227 e —ol rEh L

TR ST SRRl TN CHN

A aciug

rsoiete equinment and doeloprment

PTIZTEE o e

Ibe Torpar, aad no r3argble assets a7 30 e |
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Unlisted
investments Total
Group ] E'000 £'000
costandnetbookvalue e et i n o aema s e e o e e e e e s e o o—,
=S I T 35452 35452
A e s 66,790 66,290
[BTEY (88,000) {88,000)
At 30 June 2023 - o 13,742 T _WI.WS,742 i
A A0 ‘jw_,ri.'-e 2\)23‘777” T - - 7 35452 7 35452 7
Subsidiary

undertakings Total
Company ] E'000 .s:_'qop.
cost 2 G e e e e e e e e e e
L R0 dune A0 2539978 2539978
Adtditicor 452,012 452,012
Mreptsals - -
At30 June 2023 T - - 2,991,990 2,991,990
Kéct;mal-ated impairments T ” -
ALED e 2022
Respetsal ot peparmienits - -
ety - -
At 30 June 2023 - -
Netbookvalue S ' '
At 30 June 2023 2,991,990 2,991,990
730 Jure 2072 ' 2539978 2539978

Cetails of related unde-takings are shown in note 29

Unlisted investments conprize the Greupn s holding of the members” capital of Tende LLP & lending busiress,
and s sharcholding n Bracken lrading Limited  Ferty co-founded Tenide LLF in Octeber 2017 wth the
ritenticn of conduct ng a proportion of its future bade thiougn the partnersaip Additions ang disposals of
dnlisted irvestrnerts relate 1o rvestrients and deestraenis in Teqco [P lne with Ferr's cash 1couirements
and 1o ulbse surplus funds Fern has a small sharehcading v Zrackon Trading Limited fram time to trie Fermn's
rvestment i Rracken lrading Zincited at 30 Jung 2025 was ENLIE0 Jure 2022 fnill The drocters do rot

consider Tendo L_P o Bracken Trading Limited to be subsidiary undertakings of Fern Trading cmited
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Cashimctancs caly nohana and depcsits icpa, abile on de

Frosticten Cast o ema ety

werbe et U Le 2 e 3sh

requlalon y o ual redu e

caslt o whac b tee Choup docs e dase mmediste ara daort acs

P

Group

2023

o vt

foadl At Lol

IR RTEA

ate e st

52,175

156,919

Cash at bank and Vin hand

104,744

2027
£60D

195,825
60592

256415

Fectactea cast s conmpr sea of N hela i Dscroyy (e

S0

distrbutcn aomine

e Doripany had o casn balance of E17ATZ 000 g at 30 Jure 2

TRl ot ol
L2 U

12

234,506

175 221 af cash held in cubsiciares vt Fi-arnoal

ST a3y restnctocd 12007

Elep
£000
1538

26023

156,918

263,616

184475

Thearaunt Oof slooes recodnscd 8% G EALENSS DL s the vea vah b D

Ircluacd in the fuel spare parts and consamstbles stock valie
otk el LA DGG  manding roeroper deelooment VAP & pr

Porosartant, @nn ste spenifC prowsions

e LA St el

S e IR LS RO

cpohsb s 20070

T
.=

b 7 booa T re SIITITED e

nEr s adl i st

il

FINTES N0 F120 458 D
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13 .-

Group Company
2023 2077 2023 2027
(restated)

o . 1£'\090 ‘ ) E:OD"O ‘ £000 £000
;;;ur;;_f“alyl::;c;:euafieron eyear_ @ e e e a8 A L 3 4N S 17 S A it R 1 n e eor e e
[eeitts ar ey Arleamo o 16 T usTo s, 141,927 137662 - -
Fresaymeats 18,714 - - -
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and oildvare ey 1o cnsiomee s 297.609 225,239 -

Traoe debios 26,075 42050 14 392
Lrmonrt s e b reste 3 paaaties et S - - 21,227 32.950
Cilher el e 21,338 20197 494 3,843
e ralicn tam 3,475 - 4,624 2527
Cetwatien Franca nstean erts o 71 108,164 55126 =
Plepayt ety atia a0 raed 1 oo = 189,146 145602 184 176
Anscty beod Toresale 18,620 - - -

o 825,068 623,876 26,543 39.888

Loans and advances to cusiomers are stated net of provisions of £449242.000 2022 £13.874.0001
Fregayrments and accrued income are stated net of provisiors of £20427000 (2022 £7739.000)

Eusets held for resale are inrelation 1o Ore Healthcao where tangible fixed assels have been reclassiied to
current assets as at 20 June 2073

N terest is charged oo amaourts owed by greup undertakings, as the cutstanding balances are unsecured
and repayable on demard (2022 none)

Note 26 details the prior penod adjustments

LR
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14 o

Group Company
2022

2023 trestated) 2023

£000 £ 000 £000
Mo LreniT 50,183 58,004 1
. Kk ARSI LN - 10,272 -
I Y PRI P 52,303 24, 562 -
Pt Lo« Jhe T 29,844 2428 -

2022

£ 000

75

[N)
-~
N

NI AT 81,419 75465 699
430,891 258,264 700

449

Group
2023

Ameounts falling due between one and five years £000

©emE A e e B L T R . - A - - L

Fark coae e nraty e s T 700,520
Tt b - e T 2,052

2022
£000
383070

5,899

£.264

P 2,274

704,846

395233

Group
2023
£000
240,522
4,5181

S REMLe b abees s 0 e s SRR S i R et e s o

2022
£000

o et B

573416
24676

245,100
A rrt AT T ALE e e b e 949,946

5980082
993,325

Tre Torrpar  naa o0 et Sue e arearen than ong e

St s B ESE S S TS DA RS T S0 A
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16 . -

2023 2022

Group E'000 £000

L rore Jea 217.142 87732

Le Letvveen ars and 900 ovne 700,520 383070

PR T T ol T IR TIY 240,522 573416
1,158,184 1.044 218

[he Company had noe Bank 1nans at 30 June 2023

The bank loans are secucd against assets of the Droup with eaca lcan as held by the subs.diary shown Dolcw

2023 2022

Interest rate £000 £'000

et Ak e ot e

T B uf

e [herggy Linetedd

Codar Fresagy ared Intractrue s | e s

~has ety e Leated

Tl Enops SR SAR 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR

SOy ey Lot 6

6 month SONIA plus 1 60%
SONIA plus 2 00% + 0.7%

211,016 479138

125,000 -
non-utilisation fee

3 month EURIBOR plus

1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70% 26,609

30,946

55,553 56,079
month SONIA plus 150% 281,938 284 348
649% (swap rate of 4 55% + _ 114,076

Crarl mepton Foant salar Fare By L led

1

cptheoy DT

Pisdtsn Feveceable Dners e I Drmited

Fligrg Heesies Lieegtedd

Nl o 120 gnen dores Lnnigeed

| harang 2 2nt bt

6 month SONIA plus 2 5%

1.9% margin}
72,717
156,563

85718
1.7% + BBSY 31,614

5% + SONIA + 2.5% non-
utiisation fee

3% + SONIA + 1.2% non-
utilisation fee

Fixed rate 2 5% 39 43
1,158,184 1.044 218

18,749 12,306

10,000 -

SONIA replaced LIBOR a¢ the elfective interbank lendirg rate sysiem from 1 Zanuary 2022 The rate change

resulted i no cormrmercial impact 1o the basinesy

Finance leases

The fulre mirimum Anarce [ease gayments are as folows

2023 2022
£'000 £000

et A A <A 8, A A USSR, I 1 R4 T

Prytents e

Fle lale than e voar

Lz thdr e vear ard rod atep dhsa f e vears

Later thar flue yeiars

[oabial s Ay el

Levs Anance b anes

1,195 2428
6,594 5,899
79,141 76461
86,930 84./88
(50,457) {(51785)

Carrying amount of the liability

36,473 33,003

The finance lzases prmatily relate to a leased by

secued againg: the leated gssets

lchng ard healthuaie cguinrrent There ate no contingsn

terital, remewal or purchate oplon clauses Renfs payeule morease by luea, rflabor Finance leases are

The Campary haa t inance teases af 30 June 2022
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Decommissioning
provision Deferred tax Total
Group £000 £000 £'000

AUL e, SO0 e rmerate 4{,023 ) 37,828 78,851
R T T B S U LR T oo B A 319 (27106 26,787)
SR TR i ety R R PR R CIRE R il - 21,363 21,363
R T T LTS B P OS VLt e (4,612) - 4612
Adastrertr eirent o s - 7,358 7,358

[ reame e 0

B R SRS s [T 730 - 730
RS ST AR L] (19] - (15}
At 30 June 2023 37,441 39,443 76,884

The cecommissmng Lrovision 12 el te cowct future obligations te retumliand onwnichitbere are operatonal

s, Diomass and cotar Tarnie, te ther ornegimas, condition The amcarts ate Nel especies 1 he ulnsed forn

oxeess o 25 cears,

The Company bad no prassiens 3t 20 e 2525

18 oy b N T E

[1he Group and Comipany hasc e folovs g share capita,

Group 2023 2022
£000 . £'000

Allotted, callied-up and fully paid

e LA oo L e aamamwn ke w s re e

175,876 162662

I PN I P S R T

Company 2023 2022
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £000 £000

e 175,876 161,667

Tuarreg theos tae D

ST SRR EEY

SIIPY B e N W1 L [ SLAC TN SN T Lostachee

ne srEre captal Bl shiars e et anr et gre tensy
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N share Capital ar sirg cotl before and gt the restrartine are reported as movenentan the Group share
capital

Dunng the yeat the Company eued 142,135 908 (2072 119 866 754 ordinary shares of FO 10 eacn for an

aggreqgate nomingl value of [14. 214000 12022 F119870000 Of the shares msaed aurng e year tola,
censideration of L2571 7000 (202, 2207

D242 203000 12022 £191,/64,C00) During the vear the

JvING NsE 1o a premum of

aroup purchiased qal (2077 rill of ts ovenr ordinar

snates of Enieach with an aggregate norrimal valuc of Zral (2022 Frily Tota, conaderation of Lol (2022 L

was paie for the shares, gving nse to a pramn of Sl 072 2l

There 15 a single class of ordinary shares There are no restrictcns on the distnbution of drederds and the
repayinert of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve

The cask flow hooge reserve s Lsed to record tansactions ansing for the Gronp's casn flow

hedging arrangermiernts

Merger reserve

The merger rezerve anses from the difference between the fair value of the shares issues and the book values
of the subsidiares acgured,

19 e comibnn baee v
The movernent i non-controll ng interests was as followe.

Group

Note 2023 2022
£000  £000

s

Su N UrIR 4rRatINE. R e A T et i ST

(2,901} 37

sLbsidiar, uracriaangs and acio g e

27 (11,231} -

Poortroling otere

Toan compreherse o less stnuiaile o

1,337 6627

St g i etel

a1 40 dune 2C28 (12,795) (2901
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20 -

2eal 20 Jane 2025 there were ro contingetioles acres: e Group o Coripany

2y o o
Cacr g amaunate Sf inaroial assets and hasathes

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

Group £000 ‘ EV’OOO £'000 £000

Carrying amount of financial assets
COTT LT S S Tl e ] 508,042 423150 509 4235

Pl 2 St a e o shiaep s e et oo g e 105,691 54,409 - -

[

VOTASATCC BT A Tncd T v 1,265,555 1126,163 1 76

Nole 28 dotails the prs per oo sdjastinerits
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Derivative financial instruments
Tae Group s inancal nss managenent seeks to minimmze 1he exposure 1O market nsk, cred tnsic icwdity and

cash Lowe risk and erergy market risk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The cnorgy sector s expenencing sigrificant turbulence and tnere s a nsk that ‘oredast levels G nooms aice
not achieves due to changes in wholesale encray prices, off-lake contracts or governmaent subsid o5 Cnanges
in Covernmerl policy or regulator ntervention may resultir reciced 1InCome stréams within the croup due

Lo additional levies

Currency risk

I he Group presenits its consolidated financial state nents in sterling and cenducts busmess in a nurber of
other currencies, priﬂc\paily Curc and Adstralan dellar Conseguercly, the Group s exposed to foreign
exchange nsk due to exchange rate movements which affecl the Group's transactional expenses and the
translatian of earning and net assets of 1ts non-stethng operatiors

Transactional exposures

Trarsacidcnal exposures arse from aoministiatve and othor expense n curtencies other than tie Grous's
presentatioral currency (Sterling! The Group enters e to forward foreign excnange contracts and foreign
oxchange swaps to rmitigate the excharge rate s for cortain foreign currency pavables and recepts The
forward currency contracts and swaps arg mcasured at far value, which 15 determined using valuation
techrigues that ublise observacle inputs The key Inputls used N valung the denvatives are the forward
exchange rates ior GBP ALD and CBP EUR Cri 30 June 2023 the tar ¢aluc of the foreign cunency contracts
22 E£ralrand a lakiliy o £l 12022 L),

wias an asset of fr il

Translational exposures

Balanco sheet translationa exposurcs arise on consoldation onthe retransaton of the balance shect of non-
sterling operations into sterling, the Group's presentational cutrency. The level of cxposwre is reviewed by
management and the potential foreign cxchange maoverment 1 within an acceptable evel of r sk and therefore,
typically. the Groap's policy 1o not 10 actively beade those oxposures

Interest rate risk
The Group has expostre 1o fluctuations innrerest rates on s borrowings Where the Group enters into
borrowing arrangements vath floghng rate interest, a swap arrange\'nent Is entcred into to fix & portion of the
interest in ordor (o mitigate against an increase «nnterest rates The portion of mterest 1o be fixed 15 assessed
on a case by case basis w“-ﬂamagemem: can elect winather 1o hedoe accouwit for theso arrangements on an
ndividual traqsaction basis and have elected to apply hedge accodnting forimterest rate swaos The sweaps are
based on a princical amount of the loan facility arkd mature on the same date Cn 50 June 2022 the
outstanding interest rate swaps have a matunily ir oxcess of five years and the *air valucis 11 an asset posinen
of FI105.631.000 (2022 hanilty of 54,400 0070

Price risk
The Group 15 a sbort- to rmedhiurm-terny lenaer to the tesido izl progerty market [0 the cxlent that there s

s

ot of house prices tha! affects the procerties that the Group's [2ans are sec dred against,

detencration in the e
there s a nisk that the Lroup reay nowrecoun o full expe sure Thus s mingated by the chort-erm nature of the
[oans and the conservative level of lean 1o value that the Groug s prepared 10 'enng atf
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b} Credit risk

Customer creait nisk s mbigated tarcugh the wroup s Srect conteo poeloes

cebie beare i pan e o ensore thiat

Ul CUSLOMIC S Nave a0 anprcprste Dedt ety snd 30C maritored or an ongo ng basis

o

¢} Liquidity risk

Licquasiey ngk are managed by onsonng taas suff oert cask s 3

oofund cortmurg ard fure operahons

Licraidddy risk anses on bank 12ans nplace actoss the ool and s oransged thicagr - arstu morito nng o

covorarts and sonsba oyl of dobt gorrcvang s or 3 long-term basis weiereas sur rovondc s roccrved

thicagoant the cear suowell as nterent and redereptong one cue SRer-tenm [an boos
manzacs through crgormg casn flews fcrecas ng to enswee receipls are cufficient to meet liabioties as tney fal.

e

22 . T I A N A

4t the vear end the Group had capital commitmionts as folows

2023 2022
Group _ E'000 £000

Cotttactes o st rrl e ade 3 e Uoess Lear o sl oslernenls 118,859 347254
VAR R e o s Lo Do 197,320 173,600

A AN Jupe thie faonp bag torad fare o am lease paviments tnder ron cancellable oreratng leases

2023
Land and Other Land and Gther
buildings Buldings
£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Pl s
GUoaber 1t 2 10,350 781 87017 661
Chanieres jes e 300 sl g e 34,358 709 31627 726

La= ban i e omms 98,367 - 95664 -

143,075 1,490 135958 1,387

Irider st Das T2AS g 20 o0 thie Coernanes St ZO00

e Tadrg Lmees mas

teer] Al COMIpgt 1=y tak e e cesinpin o shc b the subsigianes by

sOodurc 2U2% L

Tarar

CLUSTANOINI A

tefied L T2es fantes

R L R T

A SO COR REeT o [ N (e



77

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

23 e b e ol e o

On 24 October 2025 Ferr Tradmg [Je\«'e-l":pmem Lirmtec CF DL, a subaidhary of the Group sucoessfully sald
Dulacca HolaC o Py Lia ana ims subs cianes s Gotopns Australia Master Trast & probt of L22m was made on

the sale

In October #02% the Croup rased L227m frorm ex <ung sharcholders through an offern to subsonne for farther

chiAares

24 oo I-.i’ir, R T L

Under FRS 102 53 1A cisclosures need not be given of transactions entered into betwaeor two or mare
members of a Group, provided t1as any subsidiany wrichis a parly (o thie transact on s wholyy owned by such
a meniber

Dunng the year fees of £91,490 000 12022; £77.934,000) weic charged to the Group by Octopus Investments
Limited. a related party due to ts sigrmificant influence over the entity Qctopus Investments Limmited weas
rechaged leaal and professonal fees totaling £75.000 (2022 EL0155: by the Group. At tne year eno, an
arrcunt of NI 2022 £5 5000 was cutstanamg which s ncludea in trage creaitors

The Group s entitled to a profiit share as a resutt of its investiment w lendo LLP a related party due o key
rranagement persenael i commeaon In 2023 a share of profit cqual lo £955 000 12022 +5,249,000) has been
recogriced by the Group At the year erd, Ine Group nag ar interest in the membker's capital of £13,742.000
12022 [£35452 0000 and accrued ncome dus of £2 812 Q00 (2022 £5.276.000)

The Group engages i lending activaties which inctude balances provded o related parties Regarding et tigs

with key management persoane! in commaon, loans of £E5 &Y O Q00 (20722 £F63,4590,000) accrued mcome of

FoB &96,000 (2022 £19.7589,000F ana deferrcd mcome of fRNIL2022 £MNIU were cutstanding at year end
Dunng the vear interest income of £9162,000 (2022 £/160,0001 and fees of £274.000 (2072 £ 35545000
eere recognised in relalion to these [eans

Ay oat 30 June 2022 FHI2022 £RE) was owed 1o the Company Dy Bracken Trading Lim ted a related parly
by key managerment perscane: in Commaon

Orher than the ransactons disclosed above, the Company s cther reiated party lransactions were with s
wholly owned subsidiary members of the Group.

25 hregl et coapnae e et SO e

I the apimon of the directars, there 15 no ultimate controlling party or parcnt cempany
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26 L a

a) Derivative adjustment

AE TEVE CORNUNCTOG A e OF piot vears account g reament oF otber contprehenicive nocme nrelabion

L acnsauee recoan hion zue dentifiea a0 error reatng o al Ananaal pears ram JLTT relarng 1o the

Aol DAt Sl NS LA

solfr @ spec s cash tow Pedge The loss wat the rosul of & 1chrarsirg

17 and the Group nas ecewves professonal advice in relation o the accetnting

Cyorcise dnderta-er e

Frearrient Lo nrey eo 1t as diecoverod the amcrtisation of the ass was already

reflected nthe npdated

far valac of tne cash fi

< haa ncorecily ean rego gricasd teace, ower the

~ Pedges and the amousation 1o

e of thie “ask b Fedge The 382 Nas o Conscgudonc

cuntuat veimpact weas a F5 Srorecuction i astoragl wrerest cost ard an sousl and © ppos teedas on n
afhier coniurehencye nceme & sunimary of the meact of 1ne Correclion is orov ded elow, winch mcludes

the associated tax adjusimisnts

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £'000

T e g S B Y e T D TPV SR NS

14975 4,505 19484
6,468 1,209 7678
Lerorres fow fliab Ly 2 s (38.145] 1,575 (36,570)
Bt el Carrane (136,049) 15.849) (141,898)
B A I | R R W= UL 6,603 (L459) 5164

Loasbebloe

T e b s

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2022 adjustments 30 June 2022
(as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £000

b i K vk iR me e T Re e e sk s m s et R+ i1 ETEEWERSIT. AL DD W Sata SR L Senra e e

Tt bl e (63,005) 11088 {51.817)
Froer st anle 1 T et 32192 (5.285) 23507
etttz Lo wa e 54,410 716 55126
Terr b Tae Foc e gt i ank 8.1el} (5013 111.174)
Toemeeny Ty g T et {41,597) 3.76G (27.828)
ESR 2770 12,560 97908
T Y L 16,294 1,574 17,868
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a) Millwood Designed Homes acquisition
On 25 Jarwan, 2025 the Group accuied MDH 1Group! Limited and 115 subsidiar es through the ciachase of

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 ‘

1005 of the shate capatal fon corsineraticer or £24,161,000

The tclleawirg labies summar se the consideration pald by the Group. 1ne "aim value of Tae 3sels acguared, ano

1he hamiities assumied at tie acquisition nate

Consideration @ oot e o e e e 000
d)h T on i i e s i o AR M Rt se | s L £t S+ epam——— 1 £S5 ek s s e G et b o Sl st e ;1’421
Drecthe attibutatie Toss 720
Dlelelren Consicl rtic 2000
Totalconsideration ' T 161

LCetals of the far value of the net assets acquired and goodwatl anzing are as follows

Book vatue Adjustments Fair value

7 7 £000 £000 £000

bt awsete . 269 - 469
rzangibee assets 331 - 331
Stk 31651 (797) 30,854
[resrde: anicd Gtber relerarcs 1.363 - 1,363
Cask and casl e ureaers 6,/ - Sl
Trade and oo arodite e, {3,332) - (3,332}
Edns (18,860) - (18,8601
Net assets acqui‘;'ed o 18,393 (797) 17,596
restexelll B ‘ 6,565
Total consideration o - 24,161

Goodwall resulung lrom the busmess combination was £6 565 000 and has an estrnated uselul life of 10

vears reflect ng the Wfespan of the assets acquirad

The consol dated statcment of comprehensive income for the year incudes £12.604.000 revenue ard a loss

befare tax of L468,000 m respect of this acguisition.
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28 - o -

onted results e prepared o s ourtrg Stanclands nolaging

Gy coedence eath Uited Kirgd >
Fira

Feport In rreasunng oo porformarce, the fnsndisl measures that e use rolode thicse that Pave baeen

Raporring standacd e as cetaled e the Praaroal Statements startirag on paae dd 09 the Aopagl

Aerveec from O repeted resuits i oeder Le g (oo s that d sboel w25 Or-LCar Companasns  ness

are considered noa-GA Al rnancial mezsines

Net debt

Ve provide rot debt i additar © casa and gosss delt G5 3 vay of assest g our sesral cash posmcs aned

oo dted an follos
2023 2022
£'000 EO0R0

Bl B AL R b R e SR e AL e A e

O R 7T E N LV

1-':-7’.?ﬂl«l |- 51‘r"5, RN A_l-tt:"fif.i’15~ 1033184 1,044 218
Cibet e 11,17 125000 5364
Gross debt - - 1,158,184 1,049,582
N TR ' - (156.919) {756.415)
Net debt - 1,001,265 793,167
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EBITDA

Farnmags betore mterest, tax, depreciation and amaitisabion CEBITDA Y is calculated by adiusting orofit atter
tax for interest tax, depreciation and amorusaucr ¢ addition o mcorme and exgenses that do not relate (o
the day to aay epetatons of the Group, We provide FREITDA i addition o prert atter tae as 1 allowss s to

asse5s our porformance without the effects of inancimg and capilal expenditures

The followvang table detals tne adiustmeorits made 1o the reportes regylts

{restated}
2023 2022
] ) ] ) ) VNote £000 E'000
Profit/(loss) for the financialyear (131,559} 38020
Ackd
AT a0 antar e susels < 43,055 3/.84G
Iropdictner chintarail & aocets & G336 7913
Conre caten of tanoile auiels ¢ 103,754 101,802
hopairrner G 21,670
Irerest Duvarhe ard siolar exnonses O 49265 25270
Frcepucanl orrs 12674 1105
Tax ’ (17,208} 17,868
Lens
brcorne trom other Facd ssset imvesimenls {955) (5,249)
Proftor disposa of sulzeirden e 1,045 (29,532)
[menrrst recer anle 2 sinular nzre & (713} (120}
EBiTOA 81,963 194,917

Note 20 detalls the prior per-od agjustnents
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29 -

Cotals of the subadary dhrideitasings are gy fo oy

Country of
Name incorporation
I8 ‘ [V_r- fory R RN TR M
2 Sl s Lo loloma L s S gdae
ERD RS TN S NIV EUCRNIE
ol F S brance
(B 1 Lirile dna som

Py < g e

St e 1 | 1 le el < aden
S e Loared T g ar bt Jnea Forgane
P et T | Corey K oasanrm
larkeey “cocr e T Lred Kegaorm
Lansclane L Sa bramze
[ETUSETIEITE=E R Pra e
Footle, Frera, | g™ Coeu e ngde
b o e s T el Loted <inad s
e Ve g T 1 b= <ingasm
Wepmo e Enrg L o te Llrte 4 simnasge e
Sz Coste e e 4
Zaby Solar T Lt
Bl L TE
Solarr Brosray Lot et hozanm
T TEt e Ry L e S e g
O T - =4 e g
e R G Leta g e
) o e coedAnadn
- R T - B SRR P PN
Er [T b _ i =g wnsdor
=] =S = EAtE TR Rl
o ] - v gt bramoe
oL - -
R M 3

Class of

shares

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crrdinary
Qrdinary
Chrdmary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Grdinary

Qdinary

Holding
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100
100%
100%
100%
100%
1005
100%
100%

100%

Principal

gdivitx -

IT Secunty érowdc—*r
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Lrergy generanon
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant cormpary
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Fnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Hotding company
Energy generatior
Energy generation
Halding company
Engrgy generalion
Fnergy gensration
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy gereration
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Name.
CoF L e Lo e s ar

b P de Darsarre b arl

bb s s o tsule

Lot Heverve B o nlbend”
LA o Lregy oot d”

ark, Zirrited

Casece Solar Fanmc b ntee”
ataker Trergy Lintoe

_adslgey e’

ol Bogrgy and Infrastiestune Do

CEPE s LaFoacke Qiatre Rivietes Sat”

‘

Db L e lafalesse Sarl

LRSS AS

Cheleon Meanow Baeray Cnted”
Cbiermor Loz baro blokdeas Diroated ™
Chitten ey Selar Teeo Lirmeton ™
Crgwean nergye Limeen)

e Bare e

Chararncd 0w SRV Dinten
CLP Dseapreens e

CLP Frovinogas Livaed”

CLR Serares Lrmtesd

CIeb To5] Lerited”

CL=E T Levntedd”

ClsR Hedr o Lieeed”

ORE B ects 1 Limitsd

CoFE e oot 2 Limred”

COPE B ot 2 Lnmeen”

CVRE RO =D Limnted”

R R - D oCned T

PR R - Z rnited
L Re O EA [ =
PARr A D len

Urited Kingdom

Country of Class of
N incn_rporati_on_ ) shqres i 1
Feanee Crdinary
Frangs Ordinary
France Crdinary
Lirited Kingdem Crdinary
Lrned Kingdos Cirdinary
rofand Ordinary
writed Kingdoss - Crdinary
Jnites Kirgdom™ Ordinary
Unitew Kirgdom Ordmary
Uten Kingdor - Ordinary
Franze Crdinary
Mrance Ordinary
Frarce Ordinary
Unted xingdem  Ordinary
Uned Kingdern Ordinary
Urited Kingdom  Ordinary
Urited Kingdern  Ordinary
Lnited Kmgdom Ordina ry
Lnited Kingdom Ordmnary
Jrited Kingdoe Ordmary
Unitee Kirgdos Ordinary
Unitee Kirgdo Ordinary
Uniteat Kirggor Ordinary
Unted kirgdar Ordinary
Un ted Kingdom Ordmary
Unzediingdom  Ordinary
Unced dingdem Ordinary
Unsed Kingdem Crrdinary
United Kmgdom — Ordinary
urded Kmgdermn Ordinary
Urited Kmgdom - Ordinary
Lrited Kingdem Ordinary

Crdinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%

100%

Principal

Holding_ activity

Energy generation

Energy generat.on
Energy generat.on
Energy generat-on
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Holding company
Halding company
Cnergy generation
Energy generation
Lnergy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Name
b= f W R
[N N I NI O
I TR Y N BN ST ETF
Coneare oy Geirrnte
t=nnact Dheer g, | sl
IR N T R IS TRET it
Corapre DRare e
Lhaltaln [N AR I
ecte e omite
i ferr Carto it 1
Tragameeal e
ey Sl Pannn L e

L T R R U [

T I A RIS T
S b tln
IR R ST [
oot R
[Nt N al
L i S
Leang s v e e ey
ALy W Foey . F'; te
- gLt e
_ 1
. e
A Ly~ - T
B S e
< Il it

Country of

incorporation

vrrad g

e e e

Jorea 1 ydem

wroed kmgee

Lr e rsd o

Wered ey

Lral=d g

lintes Ainggor

nrea Keagdoem

Jriza Kraden

wrie Angaore

Lt e g

Jeited Korgdom

Leled ngdom

Lrnae wnaane

e Fgaom

cnea koeannm

Jrted Keeadem

(WA oI flatn Talef o

Attrag

trange

[

Legea

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdimary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
OCrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordimary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding
150%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal
activity

Energy gerwerat\;)n
Energy gencration
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Frergy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation

Develonment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buldings

Development of
bulding projects

Energy generalion
Energy generation

Fibre network
producton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Frnergy generation
Fnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Hotding comeary
Energy generation
Haolaing company
Erergy generation
Frnergy generation
Friergy generation
Frergy generation

Erergy generaticn
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Name

T

Ll2cs Teonce

Ll s Fromee At
Frecse broroe Sa s,
FleCar mramse: 22 5 a1
Bl wti -ranoe 7wl
Froces Hanrva marl

B -nergy 2 bianoe oi
Foos =nerge 2 Lroited
oo inergy Zhrar 2 san

Coon Tner e Holmngs 2 orated™
Clos Frorgy Holairey, s corited™
CLoa Froegy Holeinags Leoted”

Floe Jeoreeaabile Doerg, Linntee:”

iz Leveopmeart Farane [rondedd”

Sl Heoldnwas Lienres™

Flecra Flemes icer st hinited ™

Clicta Himrmes Dcmans 20 prned ™
Flraa Hlomies iGratge React Lionited™
Ll Homas Net oy i o g

Flhiyia Hesrres thanshern Lomnted”
aaiveeln

Pl oo e ol

Covar omen Limtedd”

Fiowi o efondd rrater’”

P Lot Dinonbe o

Fload smuthero rrnien™

oo,

Country of
incorporation

L 14 28 B

Frarce

Frarice

Frar- e

Fror ce

Mrarce

brarce

Trarce

Urred vingda

trance

Un:ed kingdom

Lnaed Kingdsm

L ted Kingdom

Lirn-ted Kinganm

Linted Kingoom

Urtec Kingdem

Lutes Kingdom

Juted Ksrgdom

JJnited K rgdem

Urited Kirgdom

United Kirgdom

Urited Kimgdor

Urited Kingdor

Urited Mimgdor

LInirzd dingdo

Lirred kingao~

Lireien King e

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordmnary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Cranary
Ordinary
Crdinary
‘Ordinary,
Deferred,

Preference”

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary

Principal

Holding activit

OO

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

o I S

Energy generat.on
Energy gencraton
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buiddings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic bulldings

Construction of
daomestic buldings

Construction of
domestic bulldings

Development of
bullding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic builldings

Development of
building projects

Development of
building projects

Construction of

domestic bulldings
Buying and selling
of own real estate

Construction of
domestic builldings

Constraction of

domestic buildings
Buying and selling
of own real estate
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Lok socrlana o

LHF Thitiord

T

e

. “\-l\ "‘V

Foos cptos Boeena e Al Lieed”

Frooept o

Foiten-l Trierg,

e ey, L Hhnae Dinete 4

(3 R AN D I
L A A FRTIL A% B S R TR P
Pt b D s
Seeo=be Trane adne oo
HIREReEn
Tiaep R ATE N S T "
fornfraslno ey’
Teer et s e e
v e N N
Teep S P e S
I mOF G s e
- ok T ente
- st
T e T .
T T A

T e A

S

a0

NER L

I

[

el e s

St Ten

R}

Country of

incorporation
s amone [

e Koagdore
Jnte s Koeagaon
ned Kengdoe
S wingdo

CUED T
Lirered <ingdor

L <inGocs

Ur @ Kgaon
Leren < rgdem
e Krgdom
Jtent Eongdem

Jroanangdom

Cocod singdom

< red Hinanian
sored anadorr
Lerted “ngda
oraed Gnizodoae
Lrited <imgdo ey
Larilea Zing s o
(I GTER i b A
VIr e Woe e e
Jrotan e -
Aroes Koegaue
Ie ey 1 e qegees
Woten Fooogne

e ey e ety

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordhmary
Crrdinary

Crdinary
Crrdinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
COrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdonary
Ordinary
Ordmary
Ordinaty

Crdinary

Principal

Holding  activity

1G0%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
93%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
1%0%
100%
150%
100%

pale)A

Energy generation

Frnergy project
developrment and
management
services

Frnergy generation
Energy gereration
Crnergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding campany
Energy gencration
Holding company
Holding company
Holaing company
Holding cormpany

Holding cornpany
Holding company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Holding company
Haolding company
Halding company
Supply of fertiser

Fnergy generatinn
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Country of Class of Principal
e i .. . imcomertion shares = Holding actVity e

wiiare Ll uned kingeom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
caarlatf s g, bnosted” Untedwingesm Oridinary 1G0% Dormant company
Crgars | Thes [ Lnsed irgaaos Ordinary 16G% glrt;rjuzc;;?ork
‘.‘“I«Tr’rtm]rl\( [ortes drpr=a sl Unsed Kirga Ordinary 100% ;Igsurﬁ‘t;\frk
Talescbarnbas Wed Boergy nmatcd”™ Unisd wrgao— Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crarege S barmt L tel Unted Kingaw~ Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Cearabndac sp 7 00 Polaris Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Har e Proaeet Ling led Unted ¥ingoc~ Qrdinary 100% Energy generatian
Hewerakor acurs Bl Ll United Kingeo= Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hawreasker Matevecoe Holdings iner™ Urted kngon=1 Ordinary 100% Holding company
By ke Tale st il writea kogao Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Playraker Oaidgmes Holdimgs Lireeed” Unied kngdu Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Flae zer Wiaklanes! Unied Kengdo Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hehm S owetr o Lnnte of United Knadom Ordinary 100% Holding company
ooy Feveer Lisited” wnited Kingdom Crdinary 100% Holding company
Cagber Foapp Panmecomited™ writed Keagde~ Chrdinary 160% Energy generation
coll e Feree Lorasedd criten Kimade Cirdinary 100% Energy generation
Hellzre o Drited” wriled Kingderr Crdinary 100% Fnergy generation
o fesser a0 Powes roted” Uriled Kingders Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Hursit §=% 7 1 eneed ™ Unites Kingderr Crdinary 100% Energy generation
v star boeer Lonted Jritee Kingder Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Iraect et Lireted” writes Hingdger - Ordinary 100% Lnergy generation
Jdarriessor Roasd Energy Liemited” unites Kinggerr Ordinary 100% Energy generation
dtrass o Froee sdoldir gs Linn bes” Uates Kingdem  Ordinary 100% Holding company
s DIl v rme” Unted Kirgaem — Ordinary 100% ;Irzrjule[it(\::\;ork
Flre brver Lrated” Uniters Kiradern Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lt 3 maeneer Lineoe” Leiten Kiraderr Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lotrhgn Dovar Lrntedd Unred Kirgderr Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Toselar Lot Unteo Kirader Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sttt Sedar Tarm Dirent o™ Unred Kirgdern Ordinary 100% Energy generation
e gt e United Kirgasmn  Ordinary 100% Fibre network

production
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Name _
| cideto b s Lot
ot b e
Coanc I
R (R T A NA TR |
ST St N I 1
My Fron S ]
Aandien e
Plar e, Thato S 1
FAL G et o s aled
Ladoves B el
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Fibre network
production
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Care services for a
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Retirement village
development

Retirement village
development

Care services for a
retirement village

Retrement village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Retirernent village
development
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Chrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrchinary
Crdinary

Drdmary
Crdinary
Crrdinary
Orchinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinaty
Ordmnary
Crdinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
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Ordinary
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Crdinary

Ordinary
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Crdinary
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Ord.nary
Crdinary
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Helding company
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Energy generaticn
Energy generation
£nergy geneaton
Energy gencratior
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Holdirg company
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Country of Class of Principal
Snmeveeston Lesrage Linnted Jrecdangdam Ordinary 100% Fnergy genecration
snle s O Layferr Lavart LoET Urited argdam NA 50% Oormant LLP
Sl e e LT Lriedmraasm NA 50% Dermant LLP
Ceashi Db Contamnrg eedod Heied wirggem Ordinary 100% grborcﬁi‘ur;‘i\tc\,:?’k
wedtobr Fiors Dnetee™ Lraso keyzem Ordinary 100% Folding company
sese Fioee et aks Lnnlet Urited kirgderm Ordinary 100% ;‘rlgs&;etg\frk
st Flure Soeees ool Litea krgdor Ordinary 100% ;\rl;rsur;e“t:;ork
el BID e Yoreshue i tey” Lriten Kngdees  Ordinary Q0% ggsur;?;ork
10300 salar 102 Lr-ilen Jatea imade~ Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
ol Solbar L™ L et e Kmgdee Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGO Sonar w0 rited” Jntes Kinador Ordinary 100% Erergy generalion
Tl Solar 85 Lreited” Jneakingdo~  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tog Fern Pt Coamidry,  nrited” Jieakingdom  CQrdinary 100% Haolding company
T beallies Soar Tann . orited” Unseakingdsm Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Taonean Dalate o Zudb b eeteeds Urted argdem Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hllisghiar Toaver L d” Unned sirgasm  Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Tesdballe Zv ergs Dimineny Urited kirgaom Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Tedowr =arm L atea” Lried Kirgdom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Toreas Solar i red” Lred Kingdor Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LISk saolar Lmited ™ Lrited Knadom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Irrted Mines Eneray eted” United Kingdom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WL Lk ueiten Kmgdo Ordinary 100% ;irborsur‘;eﬂt\ol\;’qork
Wicterg metAr Linted™ Jretew kimadams - Chrdinary 100% Energy generation
siners Coergy Lionted Unites Kingda Ordinary 100% Halding company
il Coptal Lerated ™ Unres kingdam - Ordinary a0 Ei:)rsb:ig\:?rk
Fibre network
it Lt Untedtirgdom  Ordinary 100% pr%c?uc?ionO
dotatranes D Frarce Ordmary 100% Energy generation
taftece 1T S Fraron Crdinary 100% Cnergy generation
WoltATr e o b T S Fe3ice Ordinary 100% Energy generation

itafranco S Fraree Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Class of
shares

Chddirary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Srdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ohdinary
Crdinary
Crdhinary
Crdinary
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Orchinary

Ordinary

Hol_ding

S0%

100%
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Dissolved or sold durmg the Yyear: and up untll slgmng Date

L 0 SR SR e @ "L AT CL st e A e M el e O taie o MM LS YUK e AR RN ASOTLR T s

Oy Oudhial ’—I\‘: oy o m|tcu 13/0G/2022
Commil rd 15/09/2022
Zarlington Poont =zldoo Pty Lin ted 08/07/2022
Tathnglon Font Solar Fao Bty e tea 08/07/2022
Darlingten Fornt Subhcldoo L Lirited 08/07/2022
Tulacca W boance FTY Los 2411072023
Lulacca Encrgy “ropect - lodeo Co Fry Cid 24/10/2023
Dulacca BEnerge =1oject o FTy 1 24/10/2023
Dulacca Encrgy =rowect Tir G PIY Lt 24/10/2023

The registeted office of all companies bsted above 15 at 6th Flocr, 33 tielbomn, Londan, Frgland, ECIN ZH

except tor these set cut below
1w Grzybowska 2729, 00-131, Warsaw, Foland

2 Prsert Mascns LLP Capital Square, 58 Marmson Stiect Tdimburgl, Scotlana, EH3 88F

3. 1 west Regent Street Glasgow, G2 LAP
4. 272 e Aphonse de Neuville, 75017 Faris France
5. 6tk Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, D02 A342, hreland

& The Carrage House. Station Works, Staton Road, Claveracn, Wanwickshire, Umnted Kingdom, CV35 8PT

7. Zone noustrielle de Courtine 115 Rue Do Mourelet 84000 Avwgnon, france
8. 15 Sabsoury Place, Londen, Fngland wWiH 10
9. The Corporation rust Company, Comporation Trust Center, 1209 QOrange Street Whlhrrgton 19801,

United Siates
10. 4th Floor Salure Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, Scotland, EHL 2EN
N Apollo House, Mercury Park Wycombe Lane, Woohurn Green, High Wycombe, Fngland, HELD CHH
12. 1 32,101 Coling Street, Melboume, Victoria, 3000, Australia
13, Beaufort Cowt, bag Farm Lane, Kinge | angley, Heitfordshine, W4 8LR
14. 7-8 Stratford Flace, London, England. WI1C 1AY

19 Broadwalk Fouse, 5 Appota Strect, _ondon, Unted Kingdom £C2A 2406

The dreciors believe that the canyima value of the nvestmenty s sapported by ther anderyng net assets
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

bt Trachng Limited g unhisicd Comapar e Loy tonthy Sy Goard of Drectars acrees a oo at b ob t

val e calling toossae ree sharey The shiare price 1S unanadited

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Porfonmance s Caloulstod based ¢ thie sa e moce for Ferm's shares 31 2 June €achi yoar a8 shiste prve &

St suh,ech Woaadit by erast = Yoaeg LLF
Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

June J022 53 . | 3.10%
Lune A0V-22 V | 9.91%
dure 2020-21 - - _ V ” 487%
AT FUTA-E0 0.33%
' 6.23-%“

1.05%

Jure 200A 07 5.54%
Jure 20151 3.83%

e S 3.98%

3.72%
cule 3.97%

Jure SOV 1.02%
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Directors and advisers

Directors : Registered office

Po o athar PoBth Floon 55 Holbom,

KD wikey Pooondon, Cnglanc ECIN 2HT
P Barlow

T Arthur : Independent auditors
SMCGrant Eppointed 1 Japuery 2023 PPt voung LLF

i Bedford House,
Company secretary P16 Bedford Sueel,
Octlopus Company Secretanal Services Limted Befast BT 70T
Company humber
12601830

Forward-looking statements
[tus Arrnwal Report cortams cortan forward-lookeng staemoents related to the Corwpary's futtne busiress
and finanaial pedormrance and futlite eyenis or developnments These statements arc based on the culrert

knowicdge and expectations of management and are cubxect 10 assumptions, risks and uncertambics, some
chwhicn are related to factors that are beyond the contrel of the Company Accordingly. no assurarice can
e givern that any parhicular expectation will be met and forward- lecoking statements regaiding past tronds or
activities should not be taken as a representation that such trends or actvities will cantinue i the future, Past

performance cannct be rel ed on as a quide to future performance Nothimg n this Annual Report shoud bo

consirued as a proht forecast




